TO:

Public Document Pack

4

=

>

o

0

£

=
+

z :

2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

NOTICE
OF
MEETING

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on
WEDNESDAY, 6TH DECEMBER, 2017
At 7.00 pm
in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL, WINDSOR

MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS MALCOLM ALEXANDER (CHAIRMAN), PHILLIP BICKNELL (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), MICHAEL AIREY, JOHN BOWDEN, WISDOM DA COSTA, JESSE GREY,
EILEEN QUICK, SAMANTHA RAYNER AND SHAMSUL SHELIM

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS NATASHA AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER,
HASHIM BHATTI, GARY MUIR, NICOLA PRYER, JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS
AND EDWARD WILSON

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: November 28t 2017

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by the nearest
exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building until told to do so by a
member of staff.

Recording of Meetings —In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the meeting will be audio recorded, and filmed and
broadcast through the online application Periscope. The footage can be found through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or
via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting.

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the meeting. By
entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be in the
public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic Services or Legal
representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/




ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.
MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning & Property/Development Control
Manager’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing
the Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting the following
link.

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp or from Democratic Services on
01628 796251 or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring reports.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place
on items 7 and 8 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part | of Schedule 12A of
the Act"

91-92



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

PART I

To consider and determine the Enforcement Report.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 1, 2, 6, 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

ITEM | SUBJECT PAGE
NO
7. MINUTES 93-94
To confirm the Part || minutes of the previous meeting.
(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)
8. PLANNING ENFORCEMENT REPORT 95-100




Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed
which has not been fully discharged.
e Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
e Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority,
and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to
impartially consider only relevant issues.

DECLARING INTERESTS

If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or
Prejudicial Interest. If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the
item but must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body
determining the issue. You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote,
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 8 NOVEMBER 2017

PRESENT: Councillors Malcolm Alexander (Chairman), Michael Airey, John Bowden,
Wisdom Da Costa, Jesse Grey, Eileen Quick, Samantha Rayner and Shamsul Shelim

Officers: Mary Kilner, Victoria Goldberg, Nuala Wheatley and Karen Shepherd

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bicknell.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None received
MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 11
October 2017 be approved, subject to an amendment on page 8 to show
Councillor Da Costa, rather than Councillor Rankin, voting against approval of
application 17/03035.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

16/03438 Mr Hughes: the Erection of five additional close care suites at fourth floor
level at Former Windsor Rackets and Fitness Club, Helston Lane,
Windsor. THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY in accordance with
the Head of Planning’s recommendation to DEFER AND DELEGATE
authority to the Head of Planning until 31st January 2018 to grant
planning permission, with the conditions and informatives listed in
Section 4 below, on completion of a satisfactory legal agreement or
Unilateral Undertaking to secure measures to ensure a safe means
of escape in the event of flooding through the development on the
site approved under separate planning permission. In the event that
no legal agreement or Unilateral Undertaking as required has been
completed by the 31st January 2018 the matter shall be returned to
the Windsor Urban DM Panel for further discussion and or
determination.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

The Panel noted the details of the essential monitoring reports.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting
whilst discussion takes place on item 7 on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part | of
Schedule 12A of the Act

v



The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 7.17 pm

CHAIRMAN. ...,



Agenda Item 4
RoYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Urban Panel

6th December 2017

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 17/02236/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 11
Location: Land At Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough
Proposal: Change of use of the land to the stationing/parking of vehicles
Applicant:  Messrs Loveridge And  Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 7 September 2017
Giles
Item No. 2 Application No. 17/02404/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 22
Location: Land At Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough
Proposal: Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site consisting of 4 no. residential pitches, 2 no. Amenities blocks, 1
No. Wardens block and play area
Applicant:  Mssrs Giles And Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 5 October 2017
Loveridge
Item No. 3 Application No. 17/02907/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 40
Location: 47 Kings Road Windsor SL4 2AD
Proposal: Part three, part single storey rear extension
Applicant:  Mr And Mrs Corden Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 10 November 2017
Item No. 4 Application No. 17/02908/LBC Recommendation REF Page No. 57
Location: 47 Kings Road Windsor SL4 2AD
Proposal: Consent to construct a part three, part single storey rear extension. Internal alterations comprising wall

AGLIST

removal at lower ground floor level and wall removal/insertion at second floor level.

9



Applicant:  Mr And Mrs Corden Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 29 November 2017

Item No. 5 Application No. 17/02911/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 63

Location: The Queen 282 Dedworth Road Windsor SL4 4JR

Proposal: 10 flats with associated parking following the demolition of the existing Public House

Applicant: Mr Ham Member Call-in: Not applicable Expiry Date: 18 December 2017

Item No. 6 Application No. 17/03083/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 77

Location: Royal Borough of Windsor And Maidenhead Council York House 41 Sheet Street Windsor SL4 1DD

Proposal: Single storey extension to the south elevation of the existing York House office building, to provide an
enclosure for a new electricity substation

Applicant:  Mr Large Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 8 December 2017

AGLIST

10



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 December 2017 ltem: 1
Application 17/02236/FULL

No.:

Location: Land At Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough

Proposal: Change of use of the land to the stationing/parking of vehicles

Applicant: Messrs Loveridge And Giles

Agent: Dr Angus Murdoch

Parish/Ward: Datchet Parish/Datchet Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Victoria Goldberg on 01628 683551 or at
victoria.goldberg@rbwm.gov.uk

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal will also result in a
substantial impact on the openness of the Green Belt. No very special circumstances have
been put forward that clearly outweigh the harm caused by reason of inappropriateness
and the substantial impact on the openness of the Green Belt. Accordingly, the proposal is
contrary to saved Policies GB1, GB2A of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Local Plan (June 2003), Policies SP1 and SP5 of the emerging Local Plan and Paragraphs
79, 80, 87 - 90 of the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Part of the site is situated within flood zone 3b functional floodplain. The use has been
classified as a less wvulnerable use, and such a use is identified as inappropriate
development within FZ3b, as set out in the National Planning Practice Guidance and the
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. The
scheme also fails to pass the Sequential Test and therefore conflicts with Paragraph 100
and 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework

The concentration of 71 densely parked cars in a relatively small area results in the
urbanisation of this once open and rural piece of land. As such the proposed use will
negatively impact on the lawful open rural character of the site contrary to saved policy
DG1 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003) and policy
SP2 of the emerging Local Plan

The use of the site to station/park up to 71 vehicles will increase the level of activity on the
site by virtue of the number of comings and goings. This will negatively affect the amenity
of Mill House, Mill Cottage and the properties on Mill Place that back onto to the access
road. The properties on Mill Place are positioned between three and four metres from the
access road and as such vehicles accessing the site will be in close proximity to the doors
and windows on the rear elevations of these properties and their rear gardens. As such the
increase in vehicle movements to the site resulting in noise and disturbance will be
detrimental to the amenity of these properties contrary to Core Planning Principle 4 of the
NPPF and SP3(L) of the emerging Local Plan

11




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Jesse Grey because of residents concern that change of use in a
commercial area is appropriate

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located to the rear of 236 to 248 Horton Road and is accessed by vehicles
via an existing unnamed road which leads to Mill Place Caravan Park.

The site is positioned within previously undeveloped land (scrubland) that is commonly referred
to as Datchet Common although it is not registered as Common Land, and therefore does not
provide this public function and the rights normally associated with common land do not apply
here.

A pallet storage yard is located to the south of the site separated from the site by a grass mound
and emergency exit. To the east lies a car wash and the western boundary borders the remaining
area of Datchet Common.

The application site is within the Green Belt, and the Flood Zone 3.

This application has been submitted as a proposal but it should be noted that the site and the
entire extent of Datchet Common is currently being used for airport parking without planning
permission.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application proposes the change of use of the land to the stationing of motor vehicles. The
car parking area covers 1995mz2 and the parking layout details 71 parking bays.

The proposal does not reflect the current arrangement on site. It details a much smaller area than
that currently used to store cars and there is no reference to associated development i.e.
hardstanding to facilitate the use.

The entire area of Datchet Common has been covered in aggregate to form a hard standing to
facilitate the current unauthorised airport parking. This use and the associated development
(including hardstanding) are the subject of an extant enforcement notice that has been appealed.
This application does not seek approval for the hardstanding.

Ref. Description Decision and
Date

13/02024/FULL The use of land as a public gypsy and traveller | Withdrawn on the
site consisting of 10 pitches, 5 utility buildings, 29" April 2014.
play area and associated works

14/01370/FULL The use of land as a gypsy and traveller site | Dismissed by the
consisting of 9 x pitches, 5 x utility buildings, | Secretary of State
play area, warden's office and associated | on the 5" July
works. 2016.

16/03681/FULL Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site Withdrawn on the
consisting of 5 no. residential pitches plus 1 no. | 26" July 2017
warden pitch, play area and three amenity
blocks.

12




4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

17/02404/FULL Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site | Recommended
consisting of 4 no. residential pitches, 2 no. | for refusal- see
Amenities blocks, 1 No. Wardens block and | agenda

play area

As detailed above there is a separate application on the agenda relating to Datchet Common.
This proposes the use of the land as a gypsy and traveller site (4 pitches) and covers the western
section of the site and would lie adjacent to the proposed car storage use. The applications
propose to share the same access to the common. The determination of application
17/02404/FULL is a material consideration in this application. The extant enforcement notice is
also a material consideration.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within settlement Greenbelt High Risk of
area Flooding
DG1 GB1, GB2 F1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Approprlate_ Development in Green Belt and SP1. SP5
acceptable impact on Green Belt
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3
of area
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Proposed Submission
Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation runs from 30 June to 26 August 2017
with the intention to submit the Plan to the Planning Inspectorate in October 2017. In this
context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration, but limited
weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at;
http://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

Supplementary planning documents
Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

¢ The Interpretation of Policy F1 (Area Liable to Flooding) Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG) 2004

13



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Appropriate development in Green Belt

ii Acceptable impact on Green Belt

iii Impact on character and appearance of the area
v Flood Risk

% Highway Safety

Vi Impact on neighbouring amenity

Vii. planning balance

Appropriate development in Green Belt

The NPPF lists appropriate forms of development within the Green Belt at paragraphs 89 and
90. The use of the land for the stationing/parking of vehicles is not identified as an appropriate
form of development within the Green Belt, and as such is inappropriate.

As set out at paragraph 87 of the NPPF, inappropriate development in the Green Belt is by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and it should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. As stipulated in paragraph 88 of the NPPF, substantial weight should be
attributed to any harm to the Green Belt. Furthermore, ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist
unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm,
is clearly outweighed by other considerations. No very special circumstances have been put
forward by applicant and as such the harm identified by inappropriateness is not outweighed.

Acceptable impact on Green Belt

Paragraph 79 of the NPPF sets out that the ‘fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are
their openness and their permanence’. As such the effect of the proposal on the openness of the
Green Belt is an important material consideration in the determination of this application.

Policies GB1 and GB2(A) of the adopted local plan support the NPPF. Policy GB1 specifies that
consent will only be granted for changes in the use of the land which maintain openness and do
not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. Policy GB2(A) advises that
consent will not be granted for any development that has a greater impact on the openness of
the Green Belt than an existing development.

The lawful undeveloped use of the site had an open quality despite its neglected appearance.
Prior to the current unauthorised use, the area was open rough scrubland. The storage of 71 cars
on the land will greatly impact upon the openness of the site and would result in the unrestricted
sprawl of the built-up area and the loss of countryside.

The use of the land to store cars will negatively change the character and appearance of the
once undeveloped site. As such the introduction of the vehicle parking has had an urbanising
effect and will result in a significant loss of openness contrary to the NPPF, to Local Plan Policies
GB1 and GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and to policies SP1 and SP5 of the emerging Borough
Local Plan.

14



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

Impact on character and appearance of the area

Policy DG1 of the adopted Local Plan stipulates that harm should not be caused to the character
of the surrounding area through development which results in the loss of important features
which contribute to that character.

The site is a relatively enclosed area of land bordered by rear gardens of properties on Horton
road and Datchet Car wash. The concentration of 71 densely parked cars in a relatively small
area results in the urbanisation of this once open and rural piece of land which is out of keeping
in this semi-rural environment. Whilst it is acknowledged that the adjacent car wash is lawful this
scheme is of a larger scale and a greater level of intensity than the adjacent use. As such the
proposed use will negatively impact on the lawful open rural character of the site and would be
out of keeping with the area contrary to policy DG1 of the Local Plan and Policy SP3 of the
emerging Borough Local Plan.

Flood Risk

The Environment Agency advises that part of the development site lies within Flood Zone 3b
(FZ3b) i.e. functional flood plain. FZ3b is defined in the NPPF and NPPG as having a high
probability of flooding from rivers and the land where water has to flow or be stored in times of
flooding. This is confirmed by the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment.

The Environment Agency classify the proposed use as ‘less vulnerable’ development despite not
being specifically mentioned within flood risk table 2 of the NPPG. Table 3 of the NPPG - Flood
risk vulnerability and flood zone ‘compatibility’clearly indicates that this type of development is not
compatible with this flood zone and should not therefore be permitted.

In accordance with the requirements of National Planning Policy, the Sequential Test should be
applied. The submitted FRA does not address the sequential test and it also fails to provide any
assessment of fluvial flood risk. As the Sequential Test has not been passed, no further
assessment of the acceptability of the development in the flood zone is required. The proposal
fails to comply with the NPFF, with Policy F1 of the Local Plan and with Policy NR1 of the
emerging Borough Local Plan.

Highway Safety

The applicant has failed to identify the purpose of the car park despite the current airport parking
on site. As such there is no accurate way of anticipating the number of vehicle trips resulting
from the proposal. Although supporting information would be beneficial to fully appreciate the
extent of the impact, the location of the site and access are not anticipated to impose any
significant impacts to the local highway network.

The sight lines at the junction with Horton Road comply with current guidance in both directions.
The applicant proposes serving the site from the main access onto the private road. The
entrance to the site is gated, but is of sufficient width to allow two way vehicular flow across the
entrance. However, the plan also shows that the applicant intends to retain access to Mill Lane.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

The use of the site to station/park up to 71 vehicles will increase the level of activity on the site
by virtue of the number of comings and goings. This will negatively affect the amenity of Mill
House and Mill Cottage and the properties on Mill Place that back onto to the access road. The
properties on Mill Place are positioned between three and four metres from the access road and
as such vehicles accessing the site will be in close proximity to the doors and windows on the
rear elevations of these properties and their rear gardens. As such the increase in vehicle
movements to the site resulting in noise and disturbance will be detrimental to the amenity of
these properties.

15



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

As a result of the current unauthorised use on site local residents have already reported an
increased level of disturbance due to vehicles being moved at all hours of the day. Whilst is it
accepted that a condition could be imposed to limit the times of these movements, this would not
overcome the unacceptable impact to these properties arising from vehicles needing to access
the site to park outside of those hours permitted. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy DG1
of the adopted Local Plan and to policy SP3 (L) of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

Planning Balance

The proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt for which no very special
circumstances have been advanced, this is afforded substantial weight against the development
proposed. In addition there is a harmful impact on the openness of the Green Belt which weighs
against the development.

Furthermore ‘any other harm’ is required to be considered. Set out above is the harm caused to
the functional floodplain and non compliance with Policy F1 of the adopted Local Plan and
emerging policy NR1 of the Borough Local Plan as the Sequential Test is not passed. There is
harm to the semi-rural character of the area and to residential amenity contrary to Policy DG1 of
the adopted Local Plan and emerging policy SP3 of the Borough Local Plan. This also weights
against the development in the planning balance.

In the absence of a case for very special circumstances, no benefits arising from the scheme
have been identified. Consequently the development fails to accord with the adopted and
emerging Development Plan; there are no material considerations which would indicate a
contrary decision. In fact there are material considerations which add to the weight of the
assessment, this includes the extant enforcement notice. Planning permission should not be
granted.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

16 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 21.07.2017.

Three letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the report

Comment this is considered

1. | The application doesn’'t provide detail of what the parking is | 6.13-6.15
proposed for, but it is currently operating as 24/7 Airport Parking.
This 24/7 Airport parking operation is a complete nightmare for
local residents. Only a few days ago, on Sunday Aug 13", we were
trying to enjoy a summers evening in the garden but it was
disturbed by the movement of vehicles on this site. The last one
was witnessed at 11.30pm. It's ridiculous having this activity in a
residential area.

2. | This activity will impact adversely on numerous residents of Horton | 6.14-6.15
Road and Mill Place. In the case of the cottages in Mill Place, these
vehicles will be moved at all hours of the day and will pass just feet
from their walls and windows.

3. | The road has not been designed for this level of traffic 6.13

16




4. | Access to the site is obtained via an area of land which is owned by | A section of the
the Council. access is owned by
the Council but it is
leased to the Parish
Council. The
applicant has served
notice on all relevant
parties.
5. | Concerns about the safety at the junction with Horton Road 6.13
6 Inappropriate development in the Green Belt having an 6.2-6.7
unacceptable impact on character and openness
7 Unacceptable development next to the boundaries of neighbouring | 6.14-6.15
residential properties with the associated noise/air pollution
including afterhours movement of vehicles
8 No flood risk assessment Now submitted see
6.12
9 Unsuitable form of development in terms of vehicle movements 6.13-614
both within the site and in terms of access onto the Horton Road
10 | Cars come and go 24hours a day with the various unauthorised 6.15
airport parking. This is accompanied by car radios, slamming
doors, revving engines and constant car alarms throughout the
night.
Statutory consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Environment | In accordance with paragraphs 101 to 103 of the National | 6.10-6.12
Agency Planning Policy Framework, we object to this application

because the proposed development falls into a flood risk
vulnerability category that is inappropriate to the flood zone
in which the application site is located. We recommend that
the application should be refused planning permission on
this basis.

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment prepared by Global
Environmental and Advisory Solutions dated 20 July 2017
does not comply with the requirements set out in paragraph
30 part 7 of the Planning Practice Guidance to the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The submitted FRA
does not therefore provide a suitable basis for an
assessment to be made of the flood risk arising from the
proposed development. In particular, the submitted FRA fails
to provide any assessment of fluvial flood risk.




Other consultees

Protection

restricting lighting is recommended.

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is

considered
Environmental If planning permission is to be granted- condition N/A

Highways

The main access to the site is from a private road
situated to the south of Mill Lane. The width of the
private road between the site access and its junction with
Horton Road caries between 5.50 and 5.70metres with a
small pinch point measuring 3.80 metres across a 2
metre distance. However, with reference to the Highway
Authority’s Design Guidelines and The Department of
Transport’'s recommendation, set out in Manual for
Streets, the road offers sufficient room to allow two
vehicles to pass.

The sight lines at the junction with Horton Road comply
with current guidance of 2.4*43metres in both directions.
The applicant proposes serving the site from the main
access onto the private road. The entrance to the site is
gated, but is of sufficient width to allow two way vehicular
flow across the entrance. However, the plan also shows
that the applicant intends to retain access to Mill Lane.

Unfortunately the applicant has not provided detailed
information in regards to the purpose of the parking
bays. Although supporting information would be
Beneficial to fully appreciate the extent of the impact, the
location of the site and access are not anticipated to
impose any significant impacts to the local highway
network. Therefore, objecting the application on highway
ground would be unreasonable.

Datchet Parish
Council

Members had VERY STRONG OBJECTIONS to this
application on the following grounds:-

1. Inappropriate development in the Green Belt
having an unacceptable impact on the character
and openness.

2. Unacceptable development next to the
boundaries of neighbouring residential properties
with the associated noise /air pollution, including
after-hours movement of vehicles.

3. There is no Flood Risk Assessment.

4. The proposals represent an unsuitable form of
development in terms of vehicle movements both

18




10.

within the site and in term of the access onto to
Horton Rd.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
o Appendix B — Proposed Plans

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal will also result in a
substantial impact on the openness of the Green Belt. No very special circumstances have been
put forward that clearly outweigh the harm caused by reason of inappropriateness and the
substantial impact on the openness of the Green Belt. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to
saved Policies GB1, GB2(A) of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June
2003), Policies SP1 and SP5 of the emerging Local Plan and Paragraphs 79, 80, 87 - 90 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Part of the site is situated within flood zone 3b functional floodplain. The use has been classified
as a less vulnerable use, and such a use is identified as inappropriate development within FZ3b,
as set out in the National Planning Practice Guidance and the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. The scheme also fails to pass the Sequential Test
and therefore conflicts with Paragraph 100 and 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
The proposal fails to comply with the NPFF, with Policy F1 of the Local Plan and with Policy NR1
of the emerging Borough Local Plan

The concentration of 71 densely parked cars in a relatively small area results in the urbanisation
of this once open and rural piece of land. As such the proposed use will negatively impact on the
lawful open rural character of the site contrary to saved policy DG1 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003) and policy SP2 of the emerging Local Plan

The use of the site to station/park up to 71 vehicles will increase the level of activity on the site by
virtue of the number of comings and goings. This will negatively affect the amenity of Mill House,
Mill Cottage and the properties on Mill Place that back onto to the access road. The properties on
Mill Place are positioned between three and four metres from the access road and as such
vehicles accessing the site will be in close proximity to the doors and windows on the rear
elevations of these properties and their rear gardens. Accordingly the increase in vehicle
movements to the site resulting in noise and disturbance will be detrimental to the amenity of
these properties contrary to Core Planning Principle 4 of the NPPF and SP3 of the emerging
Local Plan

19



Appendix A- Site location plan and site layout

Car Parking
Total Area

1995 m?

location plan
scale 1:500 @ Al

20



Appendix B — Proposed Plans

Car Parking Option 1

Total Area
1995 m?

71No cars

gravel hard standing for timber pallet storage

@ -~ . - e

21



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 December 2017 ltem: 2

Application 17/02404/FULL

No.:

Location: Land At Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough

Proposal: Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site consisting of 4 no.
residential pitches, 2 no. Amenities blocks, 1 No. Wardens block and
play area

Applicant: Mssrs Giles And Loveridge

Agent: Dr Angus Murdoch

Parish/Ward: Datchet Parish/Datchet Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628
685739 or at claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

SUMMARY

1.1 The application seeks planning permission for 4 traveller pitches, a warden'’s office,

two amenity blocks, a play area, and associated hardstanding. The development is
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. It is considered that the
development would have a moderate impact on the openness of the Green Belt, and
would result in encroachment into the countryside. In addition, the application fails to
demonstrate that the Sequential Test (in respect of flood risk) has been passed.

1.2 A decision by the Secretary of State on this land for 9 traveller pitches (which was

dismissed) is a material consideration of significant weight in the determination of this
application. Whilst this scheme has reduced the level of impact on the openness of
the Green Belt from the previously refused scheme (9 pitches), the development is
still considered to have a moderate impact on the openness of the Green Belt. The
development is still inappropriate by definition, and would result in encroachment in
the countryside, both of which are given substantial weight. The Very Special
Circumstances put forward are not considered to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt,
or other harm in respect of flood risk.

2.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

1.

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal would also result in a
moderate impact on the openness of the Green Belt. The very special circumstances put
forward and other considerations do not clearly outweigh the harm caused by reason of its
inappropriateness which is given substantial weight, and the moderate impact on the
openness of the Green Belt.

The site is situated within flood zone 3b functional floodplain and 3a (high risk flooding). The
proposed use is classed as a highly vulnerable use, and such a use is identified as
inappropriate development within these flood zones, as set out in the National Planning
Practice Guidance and the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment. The scheme fails to pass the Sequential Test. The scheme conflicts with
Paragraph 100 and 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

22




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

o At the request of Councillor Muir irrespective of the recommendation of the Head of Planning

due to the Public Interest in Datchet
DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located between houses on the south-western side of Horton
Road and south-eastern side of Cobb Close. A pallet storage yard is directly to the
east of the site, as is a spray booth, with associated car parking. On the officer site
visit, it was observed that a number of cars were parked on the land, however, this use
does not benefit from planning permission.

The land is known as Datchet Common (as it formed part of the Datchet Common
area) although it is not registered as Common Land and therefore does not provide
this public function and the rights normally associated with common land do not apply
here.

To the south-west of the site is the existing Mill Place Caravan site which provides 16
pitches.

The application site is within the Green Belt, and the flood zone.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Permission is sought for the use of the land as a gypsy and traveller site consisting of
4 pitches, 2 amenities blocks and a warden’s office. A play area is also proposed.

The pitches would be around 15m x 15 m each (including amenity blocks) with each
utility building around 6.5m x 6m. The utility blocks would include two bathrooms and
utility rooms. The utility buildings would sit under pitched roofs with a ridge height of
around 3.7m. The plans indicate a mobile home would measure circa 4 x 10 metres,
with a height of 3.5 metres. The Flood Risk Assessment shows changes to ground
levels across the site, with the raising of lowering of ground levels by up to 1 metre. A
play area is shown within the application site. Some additional tree planting is
indicated. The site would be accessed by vehicles via an existing unnamed road which
leads to Mill Place Caravan Park. An emergency exit is shown from the site application
site through to land with commercial uses on (within the ownership of the applicant).

Application Description of proposal Decision
Reference
17/02236/FULL | Adjacent to the application site is a Pending

planning application for the change of use | Consideration
of the land to the stationing/parking of
vehicles

Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller Withdrawn on the
16/03681/FULL | site consisting of 5 no. residential pitches 26" July 2017
plus 1 no. warden pitch, play area and
three amenity blocks.

14/01370/FULL | The use of land as a gypsy and traveller Dismissed by the

site consisting of 9 x pitches, 5 x utility Secretary of State
buildings, play area, warden's office and on the 5" July
associated works. Resubmission of 2016.

planning application 13/02024

23



13/02024/FULL | The use of land as a public gypsy and Withdrawn on the
traveller site consisting of 10 pitches, 5 29" April 2014.
utility buildings, play area and associated
works

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Section 4- Sustainable Transport

Section 9- Protecting Green Belt Land

Section 10- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated
policies are:

Within settlement
area Green Belt Trees Flood Risk
DG1 GB1, GB2 (Part N6 F1
A)

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and ap

pendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Approprlate. Development in Green Belt and SP1. SP5
acceptable impact on Green Belt
Design in keeping with character and SP2. SP3
appearance of area
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1
Gypsies and Travellers HO4

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan
Proposed Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation ran
from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following this process the Council will prepare
a report which summarises the issues raised in the representations and sets out its
response to them. This report, together with all the representations received during
the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents will then be
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination by the Planning Inspectorate. In
this context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration,
but limited weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at:
http://rowm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

Supplementary planning documents

24



5.3

54

6.1

6.2

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal
are:

e The Interpretation of Policy F1 (Area Liable to Flooding) Supplementary Planning
Guidance (SPG) 2004

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/suppleme

ntary planning

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

. RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
. RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/suppleme
ntary planning

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Policy HO4 of the emerging Borough Local Plan

i Green Belt;

Iii Flood Risk

iv Impact on character and appearance of the area;

% Highway safety;

Vi Impact on amenities of neighbours;
vii Other material considerations;
viii The planning balance and the case of Very Special Circumstances;

Policy HO4 of the emerging Borough Local Plan (BLP)

Policy HO4 of the emerging BLP (which is given limited weight at this time) sets out
that planning applications for Gypsy and Traveller accommodation will be supported,
provided a number of criteria are met. The criteria listed in Policy HO4 is:

1. The site is suitably connected by sustainable modes of transport to a settlement
with health care, retail, and school with capacity

2. Theimpact of development including in combination with existing pitches would
not harm the landscape, heritage assets, biodiversity or visual character and
amenity of the area, in particular Green Belt

25



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

3. The site can be safely accessed by pedestrians, vehicles and caravans from
the highway

4. The site is not located in an area at high risk of flooding as defined by the
Council’s strategic flood risk assessment and shown on the proposals map

In this case, the Secretary of State in considering the previous application (for 9
pitches) considered that the site was well related to local services and facilities, that
walking, cycling and use of public transport would be realistic and practicable options,
and that the occupiers of the site would be able to easily access education, health,
welfare and employment infrastructure. This is still considered to be the case.

In terms of the impact of the development on the character of the area and on the
Green Belt, this scheme is considered to be harmful to the Green Belt (as explained
in the following sections of this report). In addition the site is situated on land at a high
risk of flooding. As such the proposed development would not meet all of the criteria
set out in Policy HO4 of the emerging BLP and would fail to comply with this emerging

policy.
Green Belt

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) details that the fundamental aim of
Green Belt Policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; it
confirms that the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their
permanence (paragraph 79). At paragraph 80 it identifies five purposes for the Green
Belt, the third being ‘to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment’.

At Paragraph 88, the NPPF stipulates that when considering any planning
application, Local Planning Authorities should ensure that substantial weight is
given to any harm to the Green Belt.

The Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015 (PPTS), which is to be read in conjunction
with the NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. Policy
E of the PPTS is specific to traveller sites in the Green Belt and states that:
“Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved,
except in Very Special Circumstances (VSC). Traveller sites (temporary or permanent)
in the Green Belt are inappropriate development”. It states that ‘subject to the best
interests of the child, personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to clearly
outweigh harm to the Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish very special
circumstances’.

The NPPF sets out what appropriate forms of development within the Green Belt are
in paragraphs 89 and 90. The material change of use of the land (which is what this
development would amount to) is not listed as an appropriate form of development
within the Green Belt, and as such is inappropriate.

As set out by paragraph 87 of the NPPF, inappropriate development in the Green Belt
is by definition, harmful to the Green Belt.

The Local Plan was adopted well before the publication of the NPPF. The tests set out
in Policy GB1 to determine whether a development would be inappropriate are not fully
consistent with those in the Framework. This is seen in relation to development
involving material changes in the use of land and the erection of certain categories of
buildings. Also, Policy GB2 (A) imposes an additional test with a view to safeguarding
the openness of the Green Belt. Policies GB1 and GB2 (part A) of the Local Plan are

26



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

consistent in part with the NPPF, and so are given weight, but not full weight in the
determination of this application.

The proposed material change of use of the land to a caravan site is inappropriate
development in the Green Belt, as explained in paragraph 6.5 of this report. The
proposal also includes the erection of buildings in the form of the amenity blocks. The
proposed buildings are inappropriate development because they fall outside the
exceptions listed in paragraph 89 of the NPPF. Consequently the proposal should not
be approved unless very special circumstances exist (paragraphs 87 and 88 of the
NPPF).

An essential characteristic of the Green Belt is its openness. The effect of the proposal
on openness requires consideration because it is not an explicit part of the
assessment as to whether or not the development types are in appropriate.

The site has an open quality despite the somewhat neglected appearance and the
apparent loss of vegetation. The proposal would introduce a residential use, which
would incorporate 4 mobile homes, 2 amenity blocks, warden’s office and a play area.
New areas of hardstanding for the access and parking areas would also be introduced
onto the site. Based on the number of mobile homes (and potentially touring
caravans), amenity blocks, area of hardstanding and the children’s play area, it is
considered that the development would have a moderate impact on the openness of
the Green Belt.

Flood Risk

The Flood Risk Assessment sets out that the site lies partially within a Zone 3a — high
probability (Flood Zone 3a) flood risk area and partially Zone 2 — medium probability
(Flood Zone 2), however, the Environment Agency advise that the site is within flood
zones 3a and 3b (functional flood plain). The use of the land for caravans in residential
use is classed as ‘highly vulnerable’ in respect of flood risk, and this type of
development should not be permitted in flood zones 3a and 3b, in accordance with the
advice within the National Planning Practice Guidance.

In accordance with the requirements of National Planning Policy, the Sequential Test
should be applied. The applicant refers to Cabinet reports dated 27" September 2012
and 24 January 2013, and to the Sequential Test undertaken by RBWM in 2014 which
demonstrated that the Sequential Test had been passed. However, the sequential test
undertaken in 2014 is now out of date (some 3 years old), and there could be
sequentially preferable sites that are available. In addition, this scheme is for fewer
pitches (4, instead of 9), and so the Sequential Test needs to be applied based on this
lesser development. The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that this current
scheme passes the Sequential Test, and so the scheme fails on this element. As the
Sequential Test has not been passed, no further assessment of the acceptability of the
development in the flood zone is required.

The scheme is for highly vulnerable development in food zones 3a and 3b, where such
development should not be permitted, according to the flood risk vulnerability zone
compatibility table within the National Planning Practice Guidance.

Impact on character of the area

The site is a relatively enclosed area of land bordered on two sides by residential and

commercial properties with the Mill Place Caravan Park located around 145 metres
away. Given the proposed design of the scheme, inclusion of soft landscaping, location

27



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

and characteristics along with surrounding uses, the proposal is not considered to have
a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The
proposed raising and lowering of the ground levels would not make the development
visually intrusive, to the detriment to the character of the area.

Highways

Subject to the unnamed road being used as the main entrance to the site (access
furthest south), the proposal is not considered to raise any highway objections given
that there are no highway deficiencies in the immediate area or in the surrounding
road network to prevent development taking place.

Impact on amenities of neighbours

The scheme is considered to result in an acceptable level of amenity for future
residents, particularly given the inclusion of amenity space to the centre of the site.

Considering the impact on neighbouring residents, the proposed residential scheme
is considered to be compatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. The
separation distances (20 metres as a minimum) between the proposed pitches and
amenity blocks with neighbouring residential boundaries would ensure that the
proposal would not harm the amenities of neighbouring properties by reason of loss
of privacy, loss of light, noise impact or being over bearing on adjoining properties.

Other material considerations

There are no Local Plan policies in relation to traveller sites. A gypsy and traveller
accommodation Local Plan will be prepared for the Borough which will set pitch and
plot targets and identify necessary sites for travellers and travelling show people for
the Borough. It is anticipated that a draft plan will be published for consultation in
Autumn 2018, with adoption planned for 2019.

Future Occupiers

The best interests of the child is a consideration to be given significant weight. It is
stated within the Design and Access Statement at paragraph 36 that ‘ given the
evidence base in the recent needs assessments that local need arising from
overcrowding on existing sites forms a larger part of the unmet need in the district, then
weight should be given to this material consideration, so that families with local
connections can stay close together’. The applicant puts forward the best interests of
the child as part of the Very Special Circumstances, however, no more information is
given on this point. The applicant put forwards that the relationship (in respect of
physical and familial relationship) of the existing Mill Place site, and this proposed site
adds weight to the proposal, and it is agreed that this is given some weight.

Needs for traveller accommodation within the Borough

The needs for traveller accommodation within the Borough is not known at the time of
determining this planning application, but it is accepted that there is an unmet need
within the Borough. This unmet need for traveller pitches within the Borough is given
significant weight.

Provision of a 5 year land supply of deliverable sites

28



6.22

6.23

6.24

The Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year land supply of deliverable sites for traveller
pitches, however, as with the previous scheme that was dismissed, the failure to
demonstrate a 5 year land supply of deliverable sites is given limited weight.

Other material considerations

A material consideration that is given significant weight in the determination of this
application is the decision by the Secretary of State in 2016 to dismiss a scheme on
the same land (albeit a different application site area). The Very Special
Circumstances put forward were the same as in this current application, where the
Secretary of State made the following conclusions:

‘The Secretary of State considers that, in accordance with national policies, Traveller
sites in the Green Belt are inappropriate development which should not be approved
except in very special circumstances. The Secretary of State concludes that the harm
caused by the proposal by reason of inappropriate development, the harm to the
Green Belt through loss of openness, and the conflict with one of the purposes of the
Green Belt through encroachment into the countryside should be accorded
substantial weight.’

‘... concludes that the factors weighing in favour of the development are insufficient
to clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt, which the proposal would cause such
that very special circumstances exist, taking into account the additional harm he finds
by way of loss of openness in the Green Belt. He therefore concludes that a
permanent planning permission is not justified.’

Other considerations

The impact of a development on property prices is not relevant to the planning

consideration.

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

Comments on the suitability of the soil/ground for the building are not relevant to the
planning consideration.

The development is CIL liable, and this would contribute to infrastructure provision.
The comment about the capacity of the sewerage system is noted, this would not be
a reason to refuse planning permission in itself for a development of this scale. The
sewerage provider may require improvements which would be secured outside the
planning process.

Concern has been raised over the impacts on ecology at the site, however, it is not
considered that the site is of ecological value require an ecology survey.

Street Lighting is not shown on the proposed plans.

Planning Balance and the Case of Very Special Circumstances

It has been concluded that the development constitutes an inappropriate form of
development in the Green Belt which is harmful by definition and substantial weight
needs to be given to this harm. It is considered that the development would result in
encroachment into the countryside, and that the development would have a moderate
impact on the openness of the Green Belt.

29



6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

7.1

The development would also result in other harm. The application has not
demonstrated that the Sequential Test has been passed, as required by National
Planning Policy. Flood risk is given moderate weight in the consideration of this
application.

The agent is making a case that Very Special Circumstances (VSC) exist which
outweigh the harm caused to the Green Belt and other harm identified above. The
VSC put forward are:

i) the need for further sites for Gypsies and Travellers nationally, regionally,
locally and personally for local families in need of site provision; (this is given
significant weight)

1)) the unavailability of suitable, affordable, acceptable alternative site(s); (this is
given considerable weight)

iii) the best interests of the children; (this is given significant weight)

iv) deficiencies with Development Plan policy provision for Gypsy and Traveller
caravan sites in the area; (this is given limited weight).

V) the lack of a 5 year supply of deliverable sites; (this is given limited weight)

Vi) that it is highly likely that any future site would also be in the Green Belt. (this

is given limited weight)

As set out in the PPTS, personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to
outweigh harm to the Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish VSC.

In respect of the absence of the Council having an up to date 5 year supply of traveller
sites, and deficiencies in the development plan, these are considerations which are
given weight, but only limited weight. The unmet need for traveller pitches within the
Borough is given significant weight.

The lack of alternative sites is given considerable weight.

The refusal of planning permission may have some impact on the best interests of the
children is given significant weight in principle, notwithstanding the paucity of
information relevant to this VSC.

It is not considered that the Very Special Circumstances put forward or other
considerations would outweigh the identified harm to the Green Belt, and the other
harm in respect of flood risk.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The proposal is CIL liable but would attract an exemption if the applicant claims a self-
build exemption.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties

73 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

30



The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on the 18™
August 2017.

16 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | How much of the common will be used, and will it be in keeping with its | 6.15
surroundings?
3. | Will it lower the value of the homes around? 6.24
4. | The land is not suitable to accommodate a building 6.25
5. | Concerns over impact on flooding, and this type of development is 6..12-6.14
inappropriate in this flood zone.
6 | This application does not overcome the reasons that the Secretary of 6.23
State dismissed the previous scheme.
7 | Although the description states there would be 4 pitches, there could be | 6.11
2 caravans per pitch, and car parking, all of which would have an impact
on openness.
8 | Traffic concerns 6.16
9 | Services such as doctor’s surgery can’'t cope with additional population. | 6.27
10 | Proposal will result in unacceptable loss of privacy to neighbouring 6.17-6.18
properties.
11 | The scheme will result in unacceptable noise and disturbance, and this | 6.17-6.18
proposal needs to be considered with the disturbance from the
commercial estate which has been allowed to expand.
12 | The sewage system does not have capacity to accommodate the 6.26
proposed development. Thames Water would admit this.
13 Noted.
As the Inquiry discussions took place regarding the likely level of
development on the land and alongside the main static caravan pitches
there was also space for a touring caravan on each pitch site as it was
claimed by the travellers that they would travel at times during the year.
In addition, brick built amenity blocks are proposed and the whole site
is raised up on a concrete base. All these elements impact on the
openness of the Green Belt.
14 | Historically it was claimed that there were no sequentially better sites. 6.13
Since the Inquiry, the Council has published its draft Local Plan. One
main site identified for housing by the Borough is Maidenhead Golf
Course site HA6, which is identified for 2,000 houses. It is understood
that this site is owned by the Council. In any event, on such a strategic
housing site, an allocation for part of the site for Gypsy Traveller
pitches, alongside the other identified needs of the Borough i.e.
affordable housing, should be made.
15 | Concerns over impact on ecology 6.27
16 | The information submitted with the application is out of date; things Noted.
move on and the situation could have changed.

31




Agency

development falls into a flood risk vulnerability category
that is inappropriate to the Flood Zone in which the
application site is located. We recommend that the

17 | This is inappropriate development within the Green Belt, and it would Covered in
impact on the openness of the Green Belt. assessment.
18 | There are numerous problems with flooding, drainage and sewerage in | 6.13-6.14
the area- this proposal would exacerbate it.
19 | National Planning Policy sets out that traveller sites should be identified | Noted, however,
through the Local Plan process, not through planning applications. the application
has to be
considered on
its merits.
20 | Questioned if all neighbours received a letter. See section 8
21 | The plans are unclear about what access is to be used see section 6.16
22 | Plans do not shown if any additional street lighting is to be put up- this | 6.28
could adversely impact on neighbours.
23 | Concerns that the land is contaminated. See comments
from
Environmental
Protection.
24 | Understand that the land will be raised- does this mean the site will be 6.15
more visible
25 | Plans do not have dimensions on It is not required
for plans to
have
dimensions on.
26 | Who would monitor and control this site? This is not
relevant to the
planning
consideration.
27 | Why can the existing site at Mill Place not be redeveloped? This application
has to be
assessed on its
merits.
28 | The application has been reduced down to 4 pitches, but presumably 6.21
this does not go near to meeting the Borough’s need.
29 | To claim that the village supports this application is false. Noted.
30 | There are not Very Special Circumstances to allow this development in
the Green Belt.
31 | The flood risk assessment was not submitted with the application This was since
originally. submitted and
the Environment
Agency has
commented.
32 | RBWM has failed to provide for traveller sites in the emerging Borough | Noted.
Local Plan.
Other consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Environment | We object to this application because the proposed | 6.12-6.14

32




10.

application should be refused planning permission on this
basis.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) classifies development
types according to their vulnerability to flood risk and gives
guidance on which developments are appropriate in each
Flood Zone. In this case the application falls with Flood
Zones 3a and 3b (functional floodplain) as defined by
Windsor & Maidenhead’'s Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment (SFRA) as having a high probability of
flooding.

The development type in the proposed application is
classified as ‘highly vulnerable’ in accordance with table 2
of the PPG (https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-
coastal-change#Table-2-Flood-Risk-Vulnerability-
Classification). Tables 1 and 3 of the PPG make clear that
this type of development is not compatible with this Flood
Zone and should not therefore be permitted.

Berkshire The site has archaeological potential. A condition for a | Noted.
Archaeology written scheme of investigation to be submitted is
recommended.
Environmental | Recommends a planning condition for details of investigation | Noted.
Protection and remediation of contaminated land.
Highway The proposed use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site | 6.16
Authority raises no highway concerns. The site offers sufficient parking
and turning space for each pitch, plus the access
arrangement also complies with the Borough's current
standard. With regard to refuse and recycling the applicant is
required to submit details of the servicing arrangement for
the pitches. Recommends conditions for CMP, parking,
details of refuse and recycling.
Parish Council | No objection to proposal. Noted.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Proposed site plan
e Appendix C — Elevations and floor plans

RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal would also result
in a moderate impact on the openness of the Green Belt. The very special
circumstances put forward and other considerations do not clearly outweigh the harm
caused by reason of its inappropriateness which is given substantial weight, and the
moderate impact on the openness of the Green Belt. Accordingly, the proposal is
contrary to saved Policies GB1 and GB2 (Part A) of the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003), and conflicts with Paragraphs 79, 80, 87 - 90 of

33




the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the allied National Planning
Policy for Traveller Sites (August 2015).

The site is situated within flood zone 3b functional floodplain and 3a (high risk flooding).
The units are classed as a highly vulnerable use, and such a use is identified as
inappropriate development within these flood zones, as set out in the National Planning
Practice Guidance and the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Strategic Flood
Risk Assessment. The scheme fails to pass the Sequential Test. The scheme conflicts
with Paragraph 100 and 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy
F1 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (Incorporating
Alterations Adopted 2003).

34



Appendix A- Site location plan

location plan
scale 1:500 @ Al

35



Appendix B — Proposed Site layout

$

plot 5
warden's
office

typical

Amenities Block
6XxX6.5x3.7m
high (to ridge)

176500mN

typical
mobile home
4x13x3.5m
high (to ridge)
location plan
scale 1:200 @ Al

Total A
300m

E

36



Appendix C- Elevations and Floor plans

Wardens Block

UTIITY ROOM:

allow for mecharical venfiation fo
Hitchan occommadation. alow for 3 ar|
changes per hour with 30 minue:
avermun and connection o ight swiich

AN WATER ORAINAS
smim diamerer haf round vpve
gutter and 75mm @ upve downpipe.

AL FOR FURTHER

REFER TO DWG
TAILS

HEW WINDOWS:

new windows W1, W2, W3 and W4
ment doors / ghaved screens o be

JPVC framed doubie glozed and

achieve o Uvolue of 18 W/m3x

Hate: al new ghazng wil be safety giaxs|

o BS 4206 © 198

section X-X
scale 1:20 @ Al

37

Erickwork: wilh facing bricks o match
exkfing cweling

FSmm cavity fled with 75mm rockwal
cavey wall batfs, |50mm thermalie
hurbo infernal block wall fished with

& 225mm verfical cantres arcund al
openings.

opanings

WARDEN BLOCK



Amenity block

BATHROOM VENTILATION: — ROOF CONSIRUCIK i
alow for mecharical venkation fo naw oo conuction comerting of
batmem accommodation. akow for 3 Meariey Biemit Malvern concrefe

i changes per hour with 20 minate
ovenun and cannection o kght switch

sirapped down fo wall c? 1800mm
haszntal cenres. refer o sucturdl
engineers calcuicfiors
rafiers o be svapped down fo wal
prmim horonal canires
P rigic

irsulation by kingspan or simikar

irnum Smm clecrance (o lop of
rafters) clorw for
o undenide of insuation

—[==
===
T

elevation A
scale 1:20@ Al

RAIN WATER DRAINAGH

REFER 10 WG A2 FOR FURTHER

[T

[T I
C ) -

EXTERNAL WALL
28 cavtly

‘compising |Emm esternal sk
brickwaek, wih facing bricis to match
exiztng dweling.

75mem cavey filed with 5mm roctwal
‘cavity wall bafts, 150mm thermaite:
furbo intemal block wall frished wii

WEW VRO OWS:

e winzherws W1, W2, WA andt Wa —— —
et ceors | giened sraens o be

SVE framed double glozed and

achieve a L-vaive of 1.8 Wimax

Mote: al new giazng wil be safe

55 4206 198

gas

haze ol cavites wih cut thermaite

b e v
Frovida varical dpc around al
openng:

elevation B
scale 1:20 @ Al




Floorplan of amenity block

=
38mm @ weste from washing machine
W, 500mm Uzshand o 75mm deep
seaivap

100 & upwe we. foat

0rmem & upve 2o £ vent stack

m @ weta pips o snk vintwith
75mm @ ceep seal fop

EXTERNAL WALLS:
308imm cavity wol consiruchion compriing
1G2mem eslema) skin EAckwerk wih 4aeng Ericks
fa match aniting cweling.

Firmem ceny e wih Formem mckwes caey wak
batts, 150mm themmaite furba internal black wal
finzned with 1 3mm ighiwsight piater.

provice siciniess steel wol fies & S00mm horzonial
eanires ond 460 verical centes. wal bez fo
be instaled & Z25mm vertical cantres around al

cut thermalte tinck
Fminimum S0mem wide.
Provide verfical dpe oround ol operings

CEUNG - PIER
allow for 1801 Sormm
aiingjeits 2 450rmm

phasterbacrd o undenide.
‘caling okt supported an
Catric or smitr approvedt
jokt hanger:.
alow for 1 2.4mem
et fozed
upsiands fo 34 vehs oot
ar

DOF | WALL JUNCTIGH
b for 1003 75mem,
sofwond fiing piate fued
1o wall using M8 botts or
smicr ancroved,

rahers o b Birdamouthes
over miaxg depth of rafier
et

elevation C

FOUNDATIONS:
ke for 800 x 600 deen concrate:
1734 foundations.

iop to be confimed on
site n canunction wih the bulking

appad and foked joints on £0rmem sand]

herzontal dpe
riste: foce frishes to akgn win eksing

Eeam fiocr or dmicr pproved.
1o be agreed with fe bulding

ovemn and comection 1a Ight switch

RWP

|

ionD

O
s
Q@
@

RWP

Utility Room

RWP

washing
macrine

washing
macrine

elevation B

RWP

plan view

elevation A

scale 1:20 @ Al

ke ol new iating wil ba salety gz
- HED

insuiafion by kingspan or smiar
i, S0rmem cleranzs to fop of
raflers) alow for 12.5mm plasterbourd
2 undderscie of nsuiation.

WA WHDOWE:
naw windiows W1, W2, W3 and Wa

RAIN WATER DRAINAGE
Z5ram chkarmeter hat round upve
gutter and 75mm @ upve downpioe
e g fil
copacity. lbcaed
5

face.
2 FOR FURTHER
DETALS

e Yalvs

A LAk ITIES NI

39



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 December 2017 ltem: 3
Application 17/02907/FULL
No.:
Location: 47 Kings Road Windsor SL4 2AD
Proposal: Part three, part single storey rear extension
Applicant: Mr And Mrs Corden
Agent: Mr David Dawkins

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Haydon Richardson on
01628 796697 or at haydon.richardson@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The proposed development is recommended for refusal owing to the harm it would
cause to the significance of the listed building, as well as its adverse impact upon the
character and appearance of the Inner Windsor Conservation Area

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 6 of this report):

1. | Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) suggests that any harm
to the significance of a heritage asset should be weighed against any public benefits that
would be gained through the proposal. Due to its size and siting the proposed extension is
considered to disrupt and obscure the simple historic features of the Georgian property's rear
elevation, which would cause harm to the listed building. Further harm would be caused by
the repositioning of the first floor bedroom window to second floor, loss of the games store,
and internal alterations. The less than substantial harm caused by the proposed
development would not be outweighed by any public benefit, warranting refusal of the
application.

2. | No.47 Kings Road is one of thirteen properties that make up part of Brunswick Terrace. The
terraces have a uniform design and some of their rear elevations have altered or extended,
both with and without permission. The architectural composition of the building and terrace
are important contributors to the character and appearance of the Inner Windsor
Conservation Area as identified in the Conservation Area appraisal. Due to its design, size
and siting the proposed three storey rear extension would lead to the loss of the buildings
historic layout, whilst creating an unbalanced and stepped rear elevation that obscures the
properties original architectural composition, subsequently harming the appearance of the
building and row of terraces. Both of which contribute to views of the long walk and the
significance of the inner Windsor conservation area.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION
o At the request of Councillor Rankin in the public interest.
3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS
3.1 Brunswick Terrace is a run of 26 properties along the east side of Kings Road in
Windsor. The terrace is split into three groups of grade 1l listed buildings. No.47 is one
of 13 properties listed together (39 to 63) that date to around 1800. The building is

three storeys with basement constructed in London stock brick with yellow brick
gauged flat arches above glazing bar sash windows. No.47 is a very well conserved

40



example from this terrace, having experienced a relatively low level of change, both to
its interior which retains most of the original plan form, and exterior. Although each
individual property on the terrace has been subject to alterations since their original
construction, the principal elevation of Brunswick Terrace is almost completely
unaltered. Each property has a 5 panelled front door with semi-circular fanlight to the
left of two 6 over 6 Georgian sash windows. At first floor, each building still has a
balcony and all but three have retained the wood lattice verandas with leaded tent
roofs and scalloped eaves. The terrace was originally listed in 1950 by Historic England
(formerly English Heritage) with the below listing description:

At the rear of number 47, a two storey flat roof extension was built in the 1940’s to
provide a ground floor bathroom. The rear elevation including the basement retains all
of the original sash windows. A small lean-to outbuilding, formerly a game store,
appears to date from the 19" century and in the front garden there is an original barrel
vaulted coal store. At the rear of the property is The Long Walk. This is a distinctive
landscape feature that forms part of the significant landscape setting to Windsor Castle
as well as the surrounding townscape of which this terrace is a significant part.

The properties fall within the Inner Windsor Conservation Area and hold a prominent
position, with the rear backing on to the Long Walk. Number 47 Kings Road forms an
important architectural group with number 29 to 81 (odd), creating a separation
between Kings Road and The Long Walk.

Historic England Listing Description

5130 (East Side ) Nos 39 to 63 (odd) (Brunswick Terrace) SU 9676 SE 6/40
4,1.50. Il GV 2. A terrace of 13 houses. Circa 1800, 3 storeys and basements,
London stock brick with yellow brick gauged flat window arches; parapet with
stone coping and slate roofs. Each house has 2 windows, glazing bar sashes
and 1st floor French casements, marginal glazed with top lights, giving on to
Gothic pattern cast iron balcony. 4 paned basement window. 5 panel door to left
hand with small, semi-circular, radiating and wreathed fanlight over - steps up.
The majority of houses have wood lattice verandas over balconies with triple
arches and panel standards of diamond lattice, leaded tent roofs with scalloped
eaves. Some of the houses retain original cast iron spear head railings returned
up steps. Nos 29 to 81 (odd) form a group.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks planning permission for a part single, part three storey rear
extension, fenestration alterations and internal changes.

Application No. Description Decision and Date
16/01823/LBC Consent for part single part three storey rear Refused (01.12.2016)
extension, reduction of lower ground floor front and Dismissed at appeal

external store, internal alterations and demolition | (23/03/17)
with alterations to fenestration

16/01820/FULL Part single part three storey rear extension, Refused (01.12.2016)
reduction of lower ground floor front external and Dismissed at appeal
store and alterations to fenestration (23/03/17)

17/90169/PREA Renovate and restore historical fabric, Advised against the

PP construction of a part single part three storey rear | proposal (30.06.2017)

41



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

extension and reduction of lower ground floor
front store

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework

1. Section 12 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment (Paragraph
134)

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated
policies are:

Preserves or Parking
Within Preserves special enhances the Inner
settlement interest of Listed Windsor Conservation
area Building Area
DG1, H14 LB2 CA2 P4

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and ap
pendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Historic Environment HE1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan
Proposed Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation ran
from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following this process the Council will prepare
a report which summarises the issues raised in the representations and sets out its
response to them. This report, together with all the representations received during
the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents will then be
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination by the Planning Inspectorate. In
this context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration,
but limited weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at:
http://rowm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

[ The impact of the proposed extensions and alterations on the architectural
significance of the listed building;

42




6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

ii Whether the proposed development preserves or enhances the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area.

iii Whether the proposal has a satisfactory impact upon the amenities of nearby
occupiers

iv Provision of parking
Impact on the Listed Building

Section 12, paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
‘In determining planning applications, local planning authorities should consider the
desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation’. Section 12 also states that
‘when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation.
The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. Significance can be
harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development
within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require
clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of a grade Il listed
building, park or garden should be exceptional. Where development will lead to
substantial harm to or loss of a designated heritage asset local planning authorities
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss
is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss’.

Section 12, Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
that: Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

Local Plan Policy LB2 advises that in determining planning applications special regard
should be given to the preservation of Listed Buildings and their settings. Where
proposals include the alteration or extension of a Listed Building, they should only be
granted where the works would not adversely affect the character of the building
internally and externally.

47 Kings Road is one of a terrace of thirteen, early C19 houses that lies on the east
side of Kings Road. The terrace backs onto The Long Walk, a distinctive landscape
feature that forms part of Windsor Great Park (Grade | Listed asset on the register of
Historic Parks and Gardens) and the setting of Windsor Castle. Due to this relationship
any harm to the appearance of the terraces is also likely to cause harm to views from
the Long Walk.

Some of the individual buildings in the terrace, whilst retaining their distinctive Georgian
architecture have been subject to an eclectic mix of alterations and extensions since
their original construction in the early part of the C19. Some of the extensions have
been granted planning permission and others have not, causing harm to their
respective heritage asset and the row terraces.

Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) suggests that any
harm to the significance of a heritage asset should be weighed against any public
benefits that would be gained through the proposal. Due to its size and siting the
proposed extension is considered to disrupt and obscure the simple historic features
of the Georgian property's rear elevation, which would cause harm to the listed
building. Further harm would be caused by the repositioning of the first floor bedroom

43



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

window to second floor, loss of the games store, and internal alterations. The less than
substantial harm caused by the proposed development would not be outweighed by
any public benefit, warranting refusal of the application.

Impact on the character and appearance of the host dwelling and Inner Windsor
Conservation Area.

Local Plan Policy CA2 identifies that within a Conservation Area development ought
to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the area, and to protect any
views that contribute to the distinctive character of the Conservation Area.
Furthermore, Policy CA2 requires extensions or alterations to existing buildings to be
of a high design standard that is sympathetic in terms of its siting, proportion, scale,
form, height, materials and detailing to adjacent buildings and the character of the
area in general. Local Plan Policy DG1 advises that all development should seek to
achieve a high quality of design that improves the character and quality of an area.

The Conservation Area appraisal for Inner Windsor specifically identifies the rear of
Brunswick Terrace as a sensitive location for development “The rear elevations of
individual buildings and terraced rows may also be visible from public vantage points
and some are especially visible, such as Brunswick Terrace visible from The Long
Walk. Care must be taken when considering planning applications that will alter the
uniformity of rear terraced elevations and all roofscapes.”

No0.47 Kings Road is one of thirteen properties that make up part of Brunswick Terrace.
The terraces have a uniform design and some of their rear elevations have altered or
extended, both with and without permission. The architectural composition of the
building and terrace are important contributors to the character and appearance of the
Inner Windsor Conservation Area as identified in the Conservation Area appraisal. Due
to its design, size and siting the proposed three storey rear extension would lead to
the loss of the buildings historic layout, whilst creating an unbalanced and stepped rear
elevation that obscures the properties original architectural composition, subsequently
harming the appearance of the building and row of terraces. Both of which contribute
to views of The Long Walk and the significance of the Inner Windsor Conservation
Area.

For these reasons the proposal is considered to be contrary to Local Plan Policies
LB2, CA2 and DGL1.

Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring properties

Local Plan Policy H14 (2) suggests that householder extensions should not cause an
unacceptable loss of light or privacy and should in no other have a negative impact
upon the amenities of neighbouring properties. It is considered that there would be no
significant harm caused to the immediate neighbouring properties in terms of loss of
privacy, outlook, daylight, sunlight or otherwise.

The proposed extension would not dissect a line drawn at 45 or 60 degrees from the
centre point of the nearest habitable room opening of either neighbouring property; in
compliance with the access to light guidelines contained within appendix 12 of the
Local Plan. Due to its moderate depth and relationship with neighbouring properties it
is unlikely to have any significant overbearing impact. Views from the extension and
bay window would be similar to those of the original property, as such there is unlikely
to be any significant loss of privacy to any neighbour. Overall the proposal is
considered to cause no significant harm to the amenities of any neighbour.

44



6.14

6.15

7.1

8.

Other Material Considerations

The Council has, in considering this planning application, had special regard to the

desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any features of special

architectural or historic interest which it possesses, as required under Section 66(1)
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

The Council has paid special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing

the character or appearance of the conservation area, as required under Section

72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

No letters were received either supporting or opposing the application.

Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Borough's In summary | can advise that the principle of the proposed | Paragraphs 6.2
Conservation | additions will cause less than substantial harm to the heritage | — 6.10.
Officer assets (Listed building, registered historic park and garden

and conservation area). The application has not addressed
many of the points raised in pre-application advice and
although it is accepted that the building is in need of further
sanitary accommodation, the applicant has not demonstrated
that the proposals are the least intrusive manner in which to
achieve this. The location of the proposed bathrooms have
remained in the same locations following an earlier appeal
and most recent pre-application advice. It is therefore
considered that what little public benefits there are (the
continued use of the building), these do not outweigh the harm
that this proposal would cause.

Although the rear uniformity of Brunswick Terrace has already
been altered over the years, the rear elevation of number 47
is almost unaltered and any changes should be fully justified.

The application is considered to be unacceptable from a
heritage perspective and a refusal would be supported.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

Appendix A — Location Plan

Appendix B — Existing and proposed floor plans

Appendix C — Existing and proposed elevation plans
Appendix D — Existing and proposed south and north view
Appendix E — Proposed Sections

45




REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) suggests that any
harm to the significance of a heritage asset should be weighed against any public
benefits that would be gained through the proposal. Due to its size and siting the
proposed extension is considered to disrupt and obscure the simple historic features
of the Georgian property's rear elevation, which would cause harm to the listed
building. Further harm would be caused by the repositioning of the first floor bedroom
window to second floor, loss of the games store, and internal alterations. The less than
substantial harm caused by the proposed development would not be outweighed by
any public benefit, warranting refusal of the application.

No.47 Kings Road is one of thirteen properties that make up part of Brunswick Terrace.
The terraces have a uniform design and some of their rear elevations have altered or
extended, both with and without permission. The architectural composition of the
building and terrace are important contributors to the character and appearance of the
Inner Windsor Conservation Area as identified in the Conservation Area appraisal. Due
to its design, size and siting the proposed three storey rear extension would lead to the
loss of the buildings historic layout, whilst creating an unbalanced and stepped rear
elevation that obscures the properties original architectural composition, subsequently
harming the appearance of the building and row of terraces. Both of which contribute
to views of the long walk and the significance of the inner Windsor conservation area.

46



Appendix A - Location Plan

| location plan |-
site plan @ 50 | o
:200 [PLAY

S(ALBAR CCCCCC

1Pm

17IKRWI12

47



Appendix B — Floorplans

Existing

17702903

; |
| fiscath ] o

clining

RO |

_

cliretvwviingy
PO

N\

Jroun

o Foor

2 -

g m H
1
i M . Ik
.m mmmmmmwmmm umm
FEd 1o

48



JOOL 1S4

| peq
A
i
M:/an
N

JOOJL PUOO@S

er_‘l,
o s
T
& P
Wed "
e — X ] ____________@:.
e
£
—

49

17/02908

BERKSHIRE DEVELOPMENTS LTD

CLIENT
Mr M & Mrs K Corden

Extensions and Alterations to
47 Kings Road
Windsor



Proposed

lower ground floor

17/02908

5m

A
=

SoLE BAR

drerwing
FOOM

_— e — I
AN
»

£ N
7
[ e
&
CLIENT
PROJECT
DRAWI
SCALE
50 @ A3
17/KRWI08

50



Q

\TE
50 @ A3 August 20
ORAWINGNo.  REVISION
TKRW/0T

51



Appendix C - Existing and proposed elevations

&5

.

A A

s===|E ==== il
A co
e Il <
R i S a1 P
.......... (oY)
o
=\MEEE
= i
= (E
i
EH | |
| &
B S S L
.............. ‘%ﬂ”w
t :_
| _ __
— i __
== g
Iy ' | @ (o)
B Ay S 1]

49

= .
= me
~ iilgg
= 5 i
I —
1
T A ij 1§

“SALE BAR

52



Appendix D-
Existing north and south elevations

BERKSHIRE DEVELOPMENTS LTD

cu
Mr M & Mrs K Corden
PROJECT
Extensions and Alterations to
47 Kings Road
Windsor

Berkshire
SL4 24D
DRAWING.
Existing North Elevation
SCALE DATE
1:50 @ A3 August 2017
DRAWING No. REVISION
17/KRW/05

[~
/

north

BERKSHIRE DEVELOPMENTS LTD
CLIENT

Mr M & Mrs K Corden
PROJECT
Extonsions and Alterations to
47 Kings Road
‘Windsor
Berkshire
SL4 2AD
DRAWING
Existing South Elevation
SCALE
+ & 1:50 @ A3 August 2017
DRAWING No. REVISION
17/KRW/04

17/02908

i
— 2
—_——
-+
[
L.

south

53



Proposed — North and South Elevations

north

P 1

SCALE BAR

54

j

) —

BERKSHIRE DEVELOPMENTS LTD

17/KRW/10

17/02908

(SRR |




BERKSHIRE DEVELOPMENTS LTD

CLIENT
Mr M & Mrs K Corden
CT

Extensions and Altorations to

47 Kings Road

Windsor

Borkshire

SL4 24D

Proposad South Elevation
SCALE DATE
1:50 @ A3 August 2017
DRAWING No. REVISION
A7/KRW/09

17/026¢3

S I T N S

SOUtH WA

55



Appendix E — Proposed section

SCALE BAR : ' Mr M & Mrs K Corden

Windsor

Berkshire

SL4 2AD
DRAWING

Proposed Part Section A:A
SCALE DATE
1:50 @ A4 August 2017
DRAWING No. REVISION
17IKRW/11

17/02908

Ritfhen =31 dfining

56




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 December 2017 Item: 4
Application 17/02908/LBC
No.:
Location: 47 Kings Road Windsor SL4 2AD
Proposal: Consent to construct a part three, part single storey rear extension.

Internal alterations comprising wall removal at lower ground floor level
and wall removal/insertion at second floor level.

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Corden

Agent: Mr David Dawkins

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Haydon Richardson on
01628 796697 or at haydon.richardson@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The application is recommended for refusal owing to the harm it would cause to the
significance of the listed building.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 6 of this report):

1. | The proposed works would obscure, erode and lead to the loss of the buildings historic
features and therefore significance, subsequently causing less than substantial harm to the
heritage asset. The harm identified has not been outweighed by any public benefit as
required by Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framewaork, warranting refusal of
the application.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION
o At the request of Councillor Rankin in the public interest.
3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 Brunswick Terrace is a run of 26 properties along the east side of Kings Road in
Windsor. The terrace is split into three groups of grade 1l listed buildings. No.47 is one
of 13 properties listed together (39 to 63) that date to around 1800. The building is
three storeys with basement constructed in London stock brick with yellow brick
gauged flat arches above glazing bar sash windows. No.47 is a very well conserved
example from this terrace, having experienced a relatively low level of change, both to
its interior which retains most of the original plan form, and exterior. Although each
individual property on the terrace has been subject to alterations since their original
construction, the principal elevation of Brunswick Terrace is almost completely
unaltered. Each property has a 5 panelled front door with semi-circular fanlight to the
left of two 6 over 6 Georgian sash windows. At first floor, each building still has a
balcony and all but three have retained the wood lattice verandas with leaded tent
roofs and scalloped eaves. The terrace was originally listed in 1950 by Historic England
(formerly English Heritage) with the below listing description:

3.2 At the rear of number 47, a two storey flat roof extension was built in the 1940’s to

provide a ground floor bathroom. The rear elevation including the basement retains all
of the original sash windows. A small lean-to outbuilding, formerly a game store,

57



3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

5.1

appears to date from the 19" century and in the front garden there is an original barrel
vaulted coal store. At the rear of the property is The Long Walk. This is a distinctive
landscape feature that forms part of the significant landscape setting to Windsor Castle
as well as the surrounding townscape of which this terrace is a significant part.

The properties fall within the Inner Windsor Conservation Area and hold a prominent
position, with the rear backing on to the Long Walk. Number 47 Kings Road forms an
important architectural group with number 29 to 81 (odd), creating a separation
between Kings Road and The Long Walk.

Historic England Listing Description

5130 (East Side ) Nos 39 to 63 (odd) (Brunswick Terrace) SU 9676 SE 6/40
4,1.50. Il GV 2. A terrace of 13 houses. Circa 1800, 3 storeys and basements,
London stock brick with yellow brick gauged flat window arches; parapet with
stone coping and slate roofs. Each house has 2 windows, glazing bar sashes
and 1st floor French casements, marginal glazed with top lights, giving on to
Gothic pattern cast iron balcony. 4 paned basement window. 5 panel door to left
hand with small, semi-circular, radiating and wreathed fanlight over - steps up.
The majority of houses have wood lattice verandas over balconies with triple
arches and panel standards of diamond lattice, leaded tent roofs with scalloped
eaves. Some of the houses retain original cast iron spear head railings returned
up steps. Nos 29 to 81 (odd) form a group.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks planning permission for a part single, part three storey rear
extension, fenestration alterations and internal changes. The extension would replace
the properties existing 1940’s extension. The fenestration alterations include the
repositioning of the buildings rear first floor sash window to second floor and the
removal of the rear lower ground floor wall. Internally the proposal seeks to remove
the properties second floor cupboards and bathroom, as well as changing the existing
ground floor bathroom into a study.

Application No. Description Decision and Date
16/01823/LBC Consent for part single part three storey rear Refused (01.12.2016)
extension, reduction of lower ground floor front | and Dismissed at appeal
external store, internal alterations and (23/03/17)
demolition with alterations to fenestration
16/01820/FULL Part single part three storey rear extension, Refused (01.12.2016)
reduction of lower ground floor front external and Dismissed at appeal
store and alterations to fenestration (23/03/17)
17/90169/PREAPP | Renovate and restore historical fabric, Advised against the
construction of a part single part three storey proposal (30.06.2017)
rear extension and reduction of lower ground
floor front store

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework

58




5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

1. Section 12 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment (Paragraph
134)

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated
policies are:

Preserves special interest of Listed
Building
LB2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and ap

pendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Historic Environment HE1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan
Proposed Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation ran
from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following this process the Council will prepare
a report which summarises the issues raised in the representations and sets out its
response to them. This report, together with all the representations received during
the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents will then be
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination by the Planning Inspectorate. In
this context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration,
but limited weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at:
http://rowm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
[ The impact of the proposal on the significance of the listed building

ii Whether the proposal secures public bengfits including securing the optimum
viable use of the building

Impact on the Listed Building

Section 12, paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
‘In determining planning applications, local planning authorities should consider the
desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation’. Section 12 also states that
‘when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’'s conservation.
The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be. Significance can be

59



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development
within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require
clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of a grade Il listed
building, park or garden should be exceptional. Where development will lead to
substantial harm to or loss of a designated heritage asset local planning authorities
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss
is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss’.

Section 12, paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
that ‘where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

No0.47 Kings Road is both externally and internally a well conserved example of a
Georgian terraced property. The building exhibits high standards of architectural
symmetry and proportionality common of the era and has experienced limited
alteration, with the most marked being the 1940’s extension to the rear.

The internal layout and room sizes of No.47 Kings Road are relatively unaltered
comprising the typical Georgian double-depth, two room layout, with private family
accommaodation provided at the upper floors, whilst the lower levels provide for more
social areas and the kitchen.

Although the existing 1940’s extension is of an unfavourable design, its internal layout
has had little impact upon the layout of the original dwelling. The proposed extension
would involve extending the properties rear elevation outward at lower ground, ground
and first floor; leading to a loss of symmetry in the buildings room sizes, especially at
lower ground floor where the kitchen would be significantly extended to provide a
dining room. The extension would also involve displacement of the buildings historic
layout, with a bathroom being placed at first floor and a private study at ground floor;
all of which would cause some albeit low level harm to the heritage asset.

It is suggested that there is potential to replace the existing two storey, 1940's
extension in a way which would enhance the significance of the building. However due
to its three storey design and width it is considered that the proposed extension would
obscure the simple Georgian architectural detailing of the properties rear elevation,
whilst simultaneously creating a stepped and unbalanced rear elevation, which would
contrast with its historically flush design subsequently harming the listed building. The
rear elevation would be visible from The Long Walk and public views.

The detailing of the two windows on the proposed rear extension is neither in keeping
with the existing windows, nor do they respect the historic fenestration. Any smaller
windows on this rear elevation would historically be at the very top of the building, in
the servants quarters and in the basement where the servants would work i.e. the
kitchen. Both of these smaller windows appear to have the same sized lintel as the
much larger original sashes which is not the correct detailing, the lintels should shrink
as the window size decreases, or be without all together as is the case with the original
top floor window. Any windows on this proposed elevation should follow the existing
historic hierarchy and should be the same size as the three original surrounding
windows. Furthermore the repositioning of the properties first floor bedroom window
to second floor would cause further misalignment between the windows on the
properties rear elevation. All of which would cause harm to the significance of the
heritage asset.

60



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

The loss of the game store at lower ground level would be regrettable and its relocation
does not seem to feature in this application, despite the concerns being raised at pre
application. The feature is likely to be one of the last remaining game stores in the
terrace, so its removal would be harmful.

At second floor no extensions are proposed but a new bathroom and cupboards would
be constructed within bedroom 3. The introduction of new bathrooms often creates the
need for new pipes and flues for water, waste and ventilation. Such works could be
harmful, however conditions could be added to ensure works are carried out in the
least harmful way.

The extension of the property would also effect the setting of the other listed buildings,
as the extension would be viewed in context of other properties within the terrace,
subsequently harming the significance of the setting of the neighbouring listed
buildings.

Overall it is considered that the proposed works would lead to the loss, erosion and
disruption of the buildings historic features and therefore significance, subsequently
causing less than substantial harm to the heritage asset.

Whilst it is noted that many properties within this row of Georgian terraces have been
extended, some of the works have been carried out without planning permission and
form harmful additions to their respective buildings. The existence of the other
extensions is not considered to provide an excuse for the harm to this listed building.
The planning inspector for the previous appeal acknowledged this point stating ‘I note
that there are a number of examples in the area where there have been additions
particularly on many of the rear elevations on this terrace. However that does not justify
the further harm that would arise to the significance of this listed building’
(APP/T0355/Y/16/3158644).

Public Benefit and Viable Use

The existing building requires some upgrading to bring it up to modern standards
which is perfectly acceptable. Careful re-wiring, replacement to elements of heating
systems are all acceptable alterations that would tend to not require consent.
However, it is considered that the dwelling would be entirely habitable without the
proposed extensions. Whilst it may not be desirable for modern living this in itself does
not justify causing the harm identified above. The policy test is that the benefits of the
scheme ensure the viable use of the building and it is considered that the building
could be lived in without the extensions and alterations proposed. The planning
inspector for the previous proposal (Appeal Ref. APP/T0355/Y/16/3158644),
emphasised this point stating that ‘the property is currently occupied as a private
residential house and there is no suggestion that it would not continue to do so'.
Furthermore the inspector highlighted that although the alterations would provide for
modern living and better family occupation of the property, these benefits were of
‘private interest’. The benefits of this scheme are also considered to be of private
interest.

For these reasons it is considered that no public benefits have been evidenced which
would outweigh the identified harm to the significance of the listed building; warranting
refusal of the application.

Other Material Considerations

61



6.16

7.1

The Council has had special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses,
as required under Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990. The proposal would result in less than substantial harm (NPPF para

134).

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

No letters were received either supporting or opposing the application.

Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Borough's In summary | can advise that the principle of the proposed | Paragraphs 6.2
Conservation | additions will cause less than substantial harm to the heritage | — 6.16.
Officer assets (Listed building, registered historic park and garden

and conservation area). The application has not addressed
many of the points raised in pre-application advice and
although it is accepted that the building is in need of further
sanitary accommodation, the applicant has not demonstrated
that the proposals are the least intrusive manner in which to
achieve this. The location of the proposed bathrooms have
remained in the same locations following an earlier appeal
and most recent pre-application advice. It is therefore
considered that what little public benefits there are (the
continued use of the building), these do not outweigh the harm
that this proposal would cause. The application is considered
to be unacceptable from a heritage perspective and a refusal
would be supported.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

Appendix A — Location Plan

Appendix B — Existing and proposed floor plans

Appendix C — Existing and proposed elevation plans
Appendix D — Existing and proposed south and north view
Appendix E — Proposed Sections

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

The proposed works would obscure, erode and lead to the loss of the buildings
historic features and therefore significance, subsequently causing less than
substantial harm to the heritage asset. The harm identified has not been outweighed
by any public benefit as required by Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy

Framework.

62




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 December 2017 ltem: 5
Application 17/02911/FULL
No.:
Location: The Queen 282 Dedworth Road Windsor SL4 4JR
Proposal: 10 flats with associated parking following the demolition of the existing
Public House
Applicant: Mr Ham
Agent: Mr Josh Smith
Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Clewer North Ward
If you have a question about this report, please contact: Vivienne McDowell on
01628 796578 or at vivienne.mcdowell@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 Given the overall size of the building, the large expanse of hardstanding to the front of
the building and the rather limited amount of soft ground around the proposed building,
it is considered that the proposed development represents an over-development of
the site.

1.2  The design of the building with flat roofs and accommodation on the third floor is
considered to be incongruous with the style and design of nearby buildings in this
vicinity. The buildings in the immediate vicinity have pitched roofs and are more
conventional in design. The third floor element of the building would make it appear
unduly bulky and not in keeping with the heights of buildings on either side.

1.3  There is concern about potential overlooking from the proposed first floor bedroom
window in the (west) side elevation and from first floor habitable room windows and
balcony on the front elevation of the new building across to the garden of the adjacent
residential dwelling house at Nos 284 Dedworth Road.

1.4 It is considered that the new building in its proposed siting and given its scale and
bulk would have an over-dominating impact on No 284 Dedworth Road.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

1. | Over development of the site.

2. | The design of the building incorporating flat roofs is incongruous in the immediate
vicinity of the application site.

3. | Over dominating and intrusive impact on 284 and overlooking to the garden area of
No 284.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

At the request of Councillor Hashim Bhatti — irrespective of the recommendation, in the public
interest as the decision will have a profound impact on the local community in Clewer North.

At the request of Clir Nicola Pryer — irrespective of the recommendation, in the public interest,

63



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

At the request of Clir Ed Wilson — only if the recommendation is for approval for the reason
that interest from residents should necessitate the application is discussed by panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is on the north side of Dedworth Road. The existing building is a
vacant public house. The west of application site is 284 Dedworth Road — a dwelling
house. To the east of the application site there are retail units with flats at first floor
level. The site backs on to the grounds of Dedworth Middle School.

The site is not in the Green Belt and is not within an area liable to flooding.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal is for a block of 10 x 1-bedroom flats arranged on 3 floors. The car
parking area to provide 10 spaces would be located on the frontage of the site.

The external materials of the building would be brick, grey aluminium windows and
with cladding on the second floor.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections
Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated
policies are:

Within Highways and
settlement area Parking Trees Aircraft noise
DG1, H10, H11 P4, T5 N6 NAP2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and ap
pendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and SP2, SP3
appearance of area
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan
Proposed Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation ran
from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following this process the Council will prepare
a report which summarises the issues raised in the representations and sets out its
response to them. This report, together with all the representations received during
the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents will then be

64



5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

submitted to the Secretary of State for examination by the Planning Inspectorate. In
this context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration,
but limited weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at:
http://rowm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

. RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
. RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/suppleme
ntary planning

National Planning Policy Framework : Paragraph 17 -Core Planning Principles;
Section 6 — Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes; Section 7 — Requiring
good design; Section 11 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.
EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
[ Loss of the community facility (Public House).
ii Impact on the street scene
iii Impact on neighbouring properties
iv Living environment for the future occupiers
iv. Impact on trees
% Highways and parking.
Loss of the community facility (Public House)
The loss of the Public House has already been accepted through the granting of
planning permission under 16/00043/FULL. The building is currently vacant and it is
understood that the pub ceased trading in 2013. It is noted that there is a pub within
approximately 70 metres of the application site ( Black Horse, Dedworth Road).
Impact on the street scene
It is considered that the proposed flat roofed building would appear unduly dominant
and out of keeping in the street scene in the immediate locality. The buildings in the
immediate vicinity have pitched roofs and are traditional designs. It is acknowledged

that there are examples of flat roofs elsewhere in Dedworth, but these are not readily
visible from the application site.

65



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

The proposed third floor would make the building considerably taller than the
buildings on either side. The overall height of the proposed building would be 8.7
metres. By comparison No. 280 has a ridge height of approximately 7.2 metres and
No. 284 has a ridge height of approximately 6.4 metres. The new building would
therefore exceed the heights of 280 and 284 by 1.5m and 2.3 metres respectively.

The proposed building would have a very large footprint and would appeared
cramped particularly in relation to the rear and side boundaries. In terms of breadth
the new building would have an overall breadth of 19 metres with the frontage of the
application being only 2 metres greater (measuring 21 metres). The new building
would come within 1 metre of the rear boundary and at the nearest points would be
1 metre from the east (side) boundary and 3 metres of the west (side) boundary. It
is noted that the site is tapered so that the site is wider along the rear boundary (24
metres); however the new building when viewed from Dedworth Road would appear
to span across almost the entire width of the site.

The large area of hard surfacing to the front of the site to provide car parking leaves
very limited space for meaningful tree planting to soften the scale, appearance and
impact of the building in the street scene.

The development would appear as a rather contrived over-development of the site. It
is considered that the provision of 10 units on this site is excessive.

Impact on neighbouring properties and future occupiers of the flats

It is noted that there were windows proposed in the first floor side elevations of the
scheme approved under 16/00043/FULL. Nevertheless, this current scheme proposes
more windows to habitable rooms in the side elevations than the approved scheme.

In order to reduce the potential for overlooking from windows in both first floor side
elevations, the applicant is proposing obscure glazing for the secondary living room
windows and bathrooms. The heavy reliance on obscure glazing to prevent
overlooking is a symptom of a cramped and contrived layout.

There would be a clear glazed first floor bedroom window in the east facing (side)
elevation on the new building. It is noted that on application 16/00043 there was a first
floor kitchen window (not obscure glass) proposed almost directly opposite a first floor
bedroom window in the side of No 280. The proposed first floor bedroom window in
the current scheme would be approximately 6.8 metres away from the bedroom
window in the side of No 280 and would not be directly opposite. On the approved
scheme the separation distance between the proposed first floor kitchen window and
the neighbouring bedroom window was in the order of 5.8 metres (1m less, and almost
directly opposite).

In terms of maintaining privacy to the first floor bedroom window in the side elevation
of the flat at No. 280, it is considered that the current scheme is acceptable.

Regarding light and outlook from the bedroom window in the side of No. 280, it is
considered that the proposed building would not have such a detrimental impact on
this neighbouring property to warrant refusal for this particular reason.

The proposed clear glazed bedroom window in the west (side) elevation, would be less
than 4 metres from the side boundary with No 284. This window would look directly
across to the rear garden on No 284. There is also concern that windows and the
second floor balcony in the front elevation of the new apartment block, would also give

66



6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

618

6.19

rise to overlooking of No 284. The front elevation of the new building would be
approximately 6 metres from the rear elevation of No 284. It is noted that the applicant
is proposing screening to the sides of the proposed balcony, but in this close situation,
it is not considered that this would entirely overcome the overlooking concerns. There
is a kitchen window and bedroom window in the rear elevation of No 284.

Given the overall size of the proposed building (particularly overall height 8.7 metres
and depth 15 metres), its siting within the plot and the potential for overlooking, it is
considered that the new building would represent an overbearing and very intrusive
form of development for the occupiers of No 284. It is noted that the existing pub
building is sited right up to the side boundary with No. 284 and extends beyond the
rear elevation by approximately 8 metres and that there is single storey outbuilding to
the rear of the pub. However this extension and outbuilding are single storey and
there are no windows in the side elevation that overlook No 284.

Nonetheless, given the position of the existing pub building, right up to the side
boundary with No. 284, it is considered that the new building would not reduce the
amount of daylight and sunlight reaching this neighbouring house and its garden area
immediately to the rear of the house.

Living environment for future occupiers

The second floor flats would have balconies for their amenity space. However, for the
remaining units there is rather limited general amenity space to the side and front of
the building. The area to the west of the building would be fairly narrow and right next
to windows and patio doors of ground floor flats. Similarly, the area to the front of the
building would be next to the carpark and near windows and patio doors of ground floor
flats. The strip of land to the east side of the carpark is narrow situated near the road
frontage is unlikely to be used by residents. The limited and fragmented on-site
amenity space is another symptom of a cramped layout and overdevelopment of the
site.

Nonetheless, itis noted that there are a number of parks and public within a reasonable
distance of the site. These include Osgood Park (approximately 600 metres away off
Wolf Lane); Clewer Memorial Park (approximately 1km away, on Dedworth Road) and
Dedworth Manor and Sawyer Close Park approximately 1km away — off Hanover Way).

Trees and landscaping

There were a number of mature trees near the rear boundary, within the grounds of
Dedworth Middle School. These trees were very visible in the street scene of
Dedworth Road and contributed positively to the visual amenity of the area.
However, it is noted that these trees were removed by the applicant (with the
permission of the school) soon after the application was submitted, which is
regrettable. As this land is not within the red line of the application site, any
replacement tree planting within the school grounds cannot be controlled by
condition.

Some indicative tree planting has been shown on the ‘Proposed site plan’ dwg. No.
PJSA-02-02. However, much of this is unsustainable, being too close to the
neighbouring to the west and to the proposed building along this western flank.
Some planting may be possible in the south eastern sector, but the trees would need
to be set back further from the car parking bays and it would need to be demonstrated
that sufficient rootable volume can be created via reinstated of soft ground. The
proposed drainage layout (PJSA-02-03 Rev P1) shows a large soakaway occupying

67



6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

a significant area of the thin strip of soft ground in the front of the site. This provides
an additional constraint to any new tree planting here. It has not been adequately
demonstrated that a satisfactory level of tree planting could be achieved on the site.

Highways and parking

The site fronts the B3024 Dedworth Road where parking across this section of the
highway is prohibited and enforced by double yellow lines. Vehicular speeds are
subject to a 30mph limit.

Currently the public house derives its access off Dedworth Road to the east of the site
boundary. The development proposes removing the access and serving the
residential units with a new access positioned at the midpoint of the site. At this
position a vehicle existing the site is afforded clear views in both directions.

The development of 10x 1 bedroom units is provided with 10 car parking spaces,
complying with the Borough’s Parking Strategy (2004). The design and layout of each
parking bay complies with the Borough’s Design Guidelines. The Parking Strategy is
based on a maximum provision.

Previously the public house benefitted from approximately 11 parking spaces, whilst
this development 10. In highway terms there is unlikely to be an appreciable difference
in vehicular activity between the two use classes.

The Design and Access Statement remarks that there is space for 10 cycles to be
securely stored on the east boundary in a wooden structure to match the fencing. The
applicant would be required to submit a detailed plan of the cycle store to demonstrate
that it is fit for purpose. This detail could be secured by condition if the LPA was minded
to grant planning permission. The bins would be positioned to the east on the site
boundary.

In summary, the proposed development raises no highway concerns. A number of
conditions have been suggested, if the LPA is minded to grant planning permission.
These relate to securing satisfactory access construction, a construction management
plan, parking as per the submitted layout, details of the cycle parking. A standard
informative has also been suggested regarding obtaining a highway licence.

Ecology

The applicants have not submitted a bat survey with this application. It is noted that
there is an extant permission on this site 16/00043 issued in April 2016 and this
previous application did not include a bat survey. As the building has been vacant for
some considerable time now and is in a state of disrepair, it is advisable that bat
survey work is carried out.

Sustainable urban drainage

The site is in flood zone 1. However due to the scale of the development, the
application falls under major development and hence a surface water drainage
strategy has to be submitted in line with Non statutory Technical Standards for SuDS
and Ciria C753 SuDS Manual.

Following the Lead Local Flood Authority’s review of the information above the
following additional information is required to enable this planning application to be
considered further as it is a full application:

68



. Drainage Strategy (statement and layout plan)
. Evidence that SuDS have been considered as part of the development.

. Detailed development layout with surface water features incorporated

A W N

. If infiltration SuDS are proposed on site, infiltration tests for the site in line with

BRE365.

6.29

6.30

6.31

7.

7.1

5. Evidence of structural and ground condition for the site if infiltration is proposed.

6. If Rain gardens are proposed, details of landscaping including planting schedule
and maintenance

7. Calculation evidencing pre-development and post-development runoff and
attenuation provisions.

8. Development Management and Construction Phasing Plan (where applicable)
9. Evidence of third party agreement for discharge to their system (where applicable).

10. Maintenance Plan of SUDS components.

Further information has been submitted by the applicants and comments are awaited
on this from the LLFA. Any further comment received will be reported in the panel
update if received in time. An objection from the LLFA would be another reason for
refusal.

Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that
there will be a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of
the NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the
supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority
cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites.

It is acknowledge that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s
housing stock. However, it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the socio-
economic benefits of the additional dwellings would be significantly and demonstrably
outweighed by the adverse impacts arising from the scheme proposed, contrary to
the adopted local and neighbourhood plan policies, all of which are essentially
consisted with the NPPF, and to the development plan as a whole.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

In line with the Council’'s Charging Schedule the proposed development would now
be CIL liable. CIL is charged at the rate of £240 per square metre. The applicant has
submitted the required Additional Information Requirement Form advising on the
internal floorspace 571.1 sgm. This figure is considered to be an accurate
representation of the new floorspace; however this would need to verified by the
Council’s CIL Officer.

69



7.2

9.

The required CIL payment for the proposed dwould be £137,064.00 on the basis of a
net increase of 571.1 sq.m. The CIL form advises that the building was last used for
its lawful use was 1 June 2013. As such there would be no allowance for any existing
floorspace and the building. No further action is required until prior to commencement
of the development if the proposal is subsequently approved.
CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties

12 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 26
September 2017 and the application was advertised in the Maidenhead Advertiser
on 28 September 2017.

No letters of objection or support have been received.

Statutory consultees

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways No objection. Conditions and standard informative See paragraphs
suggested. 6.11-6.16
Tree Officer | Obijection. See paragraphs
6.9 -6.10.
Environment | No objection. Conditions suggested regarding Noise Noted.
al Protection | Insulation (to protect from aircraft noise), Vehicle
Officer Deliveries, and informatives on dust control, smoke control
and construction working hours.
Lead Local Additional details are required. Further details
Flood have been
Authority submitted by the
applicant. Any
further

comments will
be reported in
the panel
update is
received in time.

An objection
from the LLFA
would be
another reason
for refusal.

See paragraphs
6.18 -6.20.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

70



10.

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — plan and elevation drawings

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED
REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

Given the overall size of the building, the proximity of the building to the side and rear
boundaries, the limited amount of soft ground around the proposed building to provide
any meaningful landscaping and amenity space for future occupiers and the large
expanse of hardstanding to the front of the building, it is considered that the proposed
development represents unacceptable over-development of the site. The proposal
would be contrary to policies, DG1, H11, H10 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead Local Plan Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003.

The design of the building with flat roofs and accommodation on the third floor is
considered to be incongruous with the style and design of nearby buildings in this
immediate vicinity, where existing buildings have pitched roofs and are more traditional
in design. The third floor element of the building would make it appear unduly bulky
and not in keeping with the heights of buildings on either side. The proposed
development would be detrimental to the street scene. The proposal would be contrary
to policies, DG1, H11, H10 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local
Plan Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003.

The new building in its proposed siting and given its scale and bulk, would have an
over-dominating impact and be an intrusive , unneighbourly form of development for
No 284 Dedworth Road. Furthermore, the proposed first floor bedroom window in the
(west) side elevation and first floor habitable room windows and balcony on the front
elevation of the new building, would give rise to unacceptable overlooking and loss of
privacy to the private garden of Nos 284 Dedworth Road. The proposal would be
contrary to policies, DG1, H11, H10 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Local Plan Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003 and contrary to the NPPF
paragraph 17 bullet point 4.

71



Appendix A -

17/02911 — The Queen, 282 Dedworth Road, Windsor

72



Appendix B

17/02911 - The Queen, 282 Dedworth Road, Windsor

73




Appendix B

17/02911 - The Queen, 282 Dedworth Road, Windsor

100 A1 PUSADAOE | PI
Boudstone | 2610017

FBA

Propesed Dralrags Layoul
282 Dathworth Raad, Windsar, SL4 407

Theidid Mecn, Lacs o, Domey
winasa Betain, S 009

B! TE) AaEEN
[ =Pt e ¥ty

e [ GG

PISA

[y gy

= U T 0
P e

Chorinad Survayods & Arciiects | Propen & Porring Comuhang

NOTE: This plan shows thz princlple of the dealrage lyoul and

mare detall will be added at the detaled deslgn stapes,

= Downplpe locaflon

M

O

——-- Dralhags raute

-— glze 1o be conffmed

[ 7] Soaksway (aienuallon cralss)



AT 1R T, P

17/02911 - The Queen, 282 Dedworth Road, Windsor

Appendix B

I —— e —— aa —— oy —— |

O
O

O
O

el ooy

100|4 Jsu1

il

B
[2-::-5

jutl

J00{4 pUnCJE)

75



Appendix B

17/02911 - The Queen, 282 Dedworth Road, Windsor

NOLLYATTA HIHON _

R e ST L e T T
HOUYATIE 1538

MOUVAT T HLNOS

76



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

6 December 2017 ltem: 6

Application 17/03083/FULL

No.:

Location: Royal Borough of Windsor And Maidenhead Council York House 41
Sheet Street Windsor SL4 1DD

Proposal: Single storey extension to the south elevation of the existing York House
office building, to provide an enclosure for a new electricity substation

Applicant: Mr Large

Agent: Mr Christian Gonsalves

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628

685739 or at claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The application seeks planning permission for a single storey extension to
accommodate an electricity substation. The extension is considered to preserve the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area, and would not detract from the
setting of Listed Buildings.

1.2 The extension would have an acceptable impact on important trees. There is an
opportunity for soft landscaping to be incorporated in front of the substation, but such
details have not been confirmed to date.

1.3 The scheme is considered to have an acceptable impact upon neighbouring residential
amenity.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

e The Council's Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 This irregular 0.38 ha site has a frontage onto Sheet Street, with the access into its
rear and subterranean car parks on its southern edge. An access route to the Regent
Court development runs along its northern side and to the east (rear) the application
building abuts an open space which has a number of mature trees, separating the site
from the edge of the Long Walk, which is part of the Grade | Historic Park and Garden.
The site expands southwards at its eastern end, to include an area of land used for
surface car parking, overlooked by the rear elevations of two-storey residential
properties fronting Brook Street, with a narrow lane linking the back of the end property
on Brook Street with this part of the site. The land drops gradually southwards and
eastwards from Sheet Street to the parking and green areas to the rear of the site.

3.2 Sheet Street is known to have formed one of the routes leading south from the Castle
since early medieval times, and is currently a principal thoroughfare for the town. It is

77



closed to traffic periodically to allow for the progress of the guard from the Victoria
Barracks (opposite the site) to and from the Castle, but for the most part it is a wide,
busy street used by bus services, with footways on both sides and on street parking
(permit-regulated) on the eastern side. Buildings on the eastern side are of mixed age,
with a terrace of Grade Il Listed early 19" Century three storey houses (York Terrace)
to the south of the site, a modern three-floor development of gable-fronted offices and
flats to the north of the site (Parkside House and Regent Court), and the solid block of
the modern Victoria Barracks, with its high brick perimeter wall, on the back edge of
the footway on the western side of the road. Further up and down the street are found
other historic and modern buildings, mainly of three storeys, and aligned with the
street, including the Grade II* Hadleigh House and the irregularly-articulated Thames
Court flats.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Decision and
date

Reference Description

17/00235/FULL Permitted

05.05.17

Refurbishment of existing York House
office building to include an additional
storey of office accommodation,
replacement windows over cladding of
brickwork and associated public realm
works

Withdrawn on the
10.04.17

17/00595/FULL Refurbishment of York House including a
single storey extension, replacement
windows, over-cladding of brickwork and
a new build 3 storey extension and

associated public realm works.

17/02104/CONDIT

Details required by part condition 2
(construction environment management
plan) condition 3 (tree protection plan and
arboricultural method statement) 7 (hard
and soft landscaping) of planning
permission 17/00235 for the
refurbishment of existing York House
office building to include an additional
storey of office accommodation,
replacement windows over cladding of
brickwork and associated public realm
works.

Approved
28.09.17

17/02228/CONDIT

Details required by condition 4 (external
materials) and 8 (bio diversity
enhancement) of planning permission
17/00235 for the refurbishment of existing
York House office building to include an
additional storey of office accommodation,
replacement windows over cladding of
brickwork and associated public realm
works.

Approved
28.09.17

17/03416/CONDIT

Details required by condition 5 (details of
plant and machinery equipment) 10 (cycle
facilities) 11 (installation of green roof and
photovoltaic panels) 13 (travel plan) of
planning permission 17/00235 for the

Pending
consideration

/8




4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

refurbishment of existing York House
office building to include an additional
storey of office accommodation,
replacement windows over cladding of
brickwork and associated public realm
works.

This application seeks planning permission for a single storey extension to the
southern elevation  of the York House office building to provide an enclosure for a
new electricity substation. The substation would be set over 40 metres back from Sheet
Street, behind a small area of land which will have soft landscaping. The substation
would take the place of what was previously approved as two car parking spaces under
the wider York House redevelopment scheme (reference 17/00235/FULL).

The extension would have a flat roof and would measure 4.2 metres in height. The
extension would be finished in a render (to match the render in the recently consented
scheme), with louvered steel doors. The Design and Access Statement sets out that
due to the consented refurbishment and extension of the current facilities at the
existing offices, the expected uplift in electricity usage as a consequence of modern
office environments, coupled with the installation of air conditioning, the increase in the
power demands necessitates the installation of a new substation.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Section 7- Requiring good design
Section 12- Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated
policies are:

Within Highways Conservation Setting of
settlement and Noise Area Listed
area Parking Trees Pollution Buildings
DG1 P4, T5 N6 NAP2 CA2 LB2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and ap

pendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and SP2. SP3
appearance of area
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1
Heritage Assets HE1
Noise EP4

79



5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan
Proposed Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public consultation ran
from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following this process the Council will prepare
a report which summarises the issues raised in the representations and sets out its
response to them. This report, together with all the representations received during
the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents will then be
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination by the Planning Inspectorate. In
this context, the Borough Local Plan: Submission Version is a material consideration,
but limited weight is afforded to this document at this time.

This document can be found at:
http://rowm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14392/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Borough%20Local%20Plan%20Submission%20Version.pdf

Supplementary planning documents
Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

. RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
. RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:
i) Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area Appraisal

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/suppleme
ntary planning

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

[ Impact upon Heritage Assets

ii Impact upon trees

iii Impact on residential amenity
Impact upon Heritage Assets

The special interest of this part of the Conservation Area, and of the adjoining
Conservation Area, lies in the overall impression of confidence and prosperity that the
combination of modern and historic structures produces in this main arrival point into
the town centre. The height, scale and mass of the built form on the site and to its
north are of a town centre nature — announcing the transition from residential suburb
to commercial and civic uses. Typical building form varies on a theme of three
identifiable storeys with a roof above, generally with road-aligning facades on or close
to the back edge of the pavement.

The early 19th Century terrace of strong but elegant brick houses on Sheet Street to

the south of York House is Grade Il Listed. The application site is within the setting of,
and is read obliquely together with this heritage asset, as it is also (although to a lesser

80



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

degree) with the Listed buildings set around the junction of Victoria Road and Sheet
Street.

The proposed single storey extension will be set quite a considerable distance back
from Sheet Street, and is relatively small in scale. In addition, soft landscaping will be
planted in front of this substation, which will soften the impact of this extension. Owing
to these factors, it is not considered that the extension would have an adverse impact
on important views within the Conservation Area, and it is considered that the
development would preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

The extension would be over 12 metres away from the Listed buildings (the Terrace)
to the south of the application site. Owing to the relatively small scale of the extension,
and the use of sympathetic materials that will complement the materials for the York
House redevelopment scheme, it is not considered that the extension would have an
adverse impact on the setting of the neighbouring Listed Buildings.

The Council has paid special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of the Conservation Area, as required under Section
72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and as paid
special attention to the setting of Listed Buildings as required by 66 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Impact on trees

There is a Horse Chestnut situated on site, close to the site boundary with the
residential properties on Sheet Street. The proposed extension is located just outside
the Root Protection Area of this tree, and so would have an acceptable impact upon
this tree. The applicant has also provided a cable route plan, which shows cables
running to the substation will be outside of the Root Protection Area. The tree
protection measures as set out in the submitted arboricultural assessment need be
implemented for the construction of this extension, and these measures are secured
by condition 3.

As part of the landscaping scheme approved for the York House redevelopment, the
landscaping plan showed a hornbeam to be planted in the soft landscaping area in
front of the car parking spaces. With this extension going in, it is unlikely that a
hornbeam could be planted in this area as it is unlikely to have the space to survive.
The applicant has been asked to provide details of the soft landscaping to be planted
in this area, and this will be reported in the update to Panel. If the details of soft
landscaping are not provided now, these can be secured by planning condition (see
condition 4).

Impact on residential amenity

The extension would be set away from the closest residential garden by 10 metres.
Due to the distance of the extension to the neighbouring residential garden and the
single storey nature of the proposal, it is not considered that the extension would be
unduly overbearing to neighbouring residential properties.

The safety of the substation is not something that is covered by the planning regime,
and would be subject to other controls/guidelines.

81



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

With regard to noise, the substation will be enclosed in the building which will help
reduce noise. Environmental Protection raise no objection to this proposal with regards
to noise, and a condition is recommended (condition 5) to ensure noise levels are kept
to an acceptable level.

Other considerations

The extension will take the place of 2 car parking spaces that were approved as part
of the York House redevelopment scheme; the loss of these spaces is considered
acceptable given that this is a sustainable town centre location in close proximity to
public transport hubs.

It is questioned by a resident why the substation cannot be sited in the undercroft car
park. The applicant has looked at potential locations for the substation, including the
undercroft car park, however, it was not deemed suitable for the following reasons:

-The access for maintenance/repair/replacement is compromised by the constraints
imposed by the existing building (car park entrance headroom). The resultant strategy
may not be acceptable to the Network Provider.

-This location does not meet the requirements of the Network Provider for internal clear
headroom

- The Network Provider would not accept a solution within the under-croft car park
given that there is an external car-park that could potentially provide alternative
locations.

The location in this planning application was found to be the best option for siting. The
LPA can only consider whether the scheme proposed is acceptable in planning terms.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

51 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on the 12"
October 2017 and the application was advertised in the Maidenhead Advertiser on

19" October 2017.

1 letter was received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | It's a shame that the substation cannot be accommodated in the 6.13
undercroft car park. | would welcome this for to be reviewed as it is
unsightly to have this building and lose a further 2 spaces.
2. | 'would like assurance that there is no health risk to neighbouring 6.10
properties.
3. | I would like assurance that the building is soundproofed and that there 6.11
iS No noise situation to residential properties.
4. | If approved, please can be trees be increased in front of the new 6.8
building to hide it as much as possible?

Other consultees

82




8.

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Historic
England

On the basis of the information available to date, we do not
wish to offer any comments. We suggest that you seek the
views of your specialist conservation and archaeological
advisers, as relevant.

Noted.

Conservation
Officer

After considering the application, conservation raise no
objection to the proposal and do not wish to make any
comments on the application.

Noted.

Council's
Ecologist

The proposed development is situated on an area of hard
standing with no ecological value, therefore an ecological
appraisal of the site is not required.

There will be no net loss in biodiversity, given the landscaping
already approved under planning permission 17/00235.
Therefore no further enhancements for biodiversity are
required

Noted.

Environment
al Protection

| refer to the above-mentioned full planning application and
would recommend that, should planning permission be
granted, the following conditions be attached to the consent
notice: -

Condition

EP1 Noise Control

The rating level of the noise emitted from the plant shall be
lower than the existing background level (to be measured over
the period of operation of the proposed plant and equipment
and over a minimum reference time interval of 1 hour in the
daytime and 15 minutes at night) by at least 5dB(A). The noise
levels shall be determined 1m from the nearest noise-
sensitive premises. The measurement and assessment shall
be made in accordance with BS 4142: 2014.

Reason: To protect the residential amenities of the area.
Relevant Policy Local Plan NAP3.

See
recommended
condition.

Highways

No objection

Noted.

Tree Officer

The extension, to provide an enclosure for the substation, is
just outside the root protection area of a mature Horse
chestnut. Details of the route of the associated underground
cables are acceptable.

6.7

Local Lead
Flood
Authority

No comment to make

Noted.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

83




NAP3.

e Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Proposed site layout
e Appendix C — Plans

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED
REASONS

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended).

The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in
accordance with those specified in the application unless any different materials are
first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved detalils.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan DG1, CA2

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection
specified shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars
(the arboricultural method statement, tree protection plan and drawing P-
0094095/SK/010), and before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on
to the site, and thereafter maintained until the completion of all construction work and
all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been permanently removed from
the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this
condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any
excavation be made, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and
surrounding area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

Prior to the construction of the extension hereby approved, full details the soft
landscape works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved within the first planting season
following the completion of the development and retained in accordance with the
approved details. If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree
or shrub shown on the approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or
shrub planted in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or
becomes seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of the same species
and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the immediate vicinity, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives its prior written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively
to, the character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

The rating level of the noise emitted from the plant shall be lower than the existing
background level (to be measured over the period of operation of the proposed plant
and equipment and over a minimum reference time interval of 1 hour in the daytime
and 15 minutes at night) by at least 5dB(A). The noise levels shall be determined 1m
from the nearest noise-sensitive premises. The measurement and assessment shall
be made in accordance with BS 4142: 2014.

Reason: To protect the residential amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan

84



The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved particulars and plans.

85



Appendix A- Site location plan

86



Appendix B- Proposed site layout

]
5
&
3

Mainmtenance zone hatched
on surface of car park
'_1_1:]-.31“ t:

7 ." Ill,-' 3 -

movable bollards | |

87



Appendix C- Proposed Plans

Planting in accordance with consented

landscape information

— Proposad substation enclosure

— FPC aluminium capping. Colour RAL
7011 to match consented scheme

Consented building behind

Lo

Louvered steel door to match
doors of consented scheme

SOUTH ELEVATION (Elevation A}
oA e

Existing horse chestnut ree

Rear of houses facing Shest 5t

Progosed substation

Consented building behind —

—FPC aluminium capping. Colour RAL
7011 to match consented scheme

(— Proposed substation enclosure

Site boundary

Render finish to match consented
scheme

/72 EAST ELEVATION {Section B}

)

Proposad substation
PPC aluminium louvered

vents. RAL 7011 colour to
match consented scheme

88

Consented building behind

=T

— Proposed substation enclosure

Planting in accordance with consented
landscape information

E

Proposed substation

" WEST ELEVATION (Elevation G




R

Ly
Switch

UNDER-CROFT CAR PARK

Rainwatar
pipe to match
consentad
schama

Planting in
accordance with
consented
landscape

informaticn

Rmvﬂ:;é*mnards (only in position
during periods.of maintenance)

,

SUBSTATION (PLANT
INDICATIVE ONLY)

\\ PPC steel louvered doors and
veants. RAL 7011 (colour to match
consanted schama windaws)

89

RWP

AT



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR URBAN

Agenda |

The Royal Borough

Planning Appeals Received

27 October 2017 - 24 November 2017

Windsor &
Maidenhead

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Further information on planning appeals can be found at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ Should you wish

to make comments in

connection with an appeal, please use the Plns reference number and write to the relevant

address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square,

Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The Square Bristol BS1
6PN or email teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Bray Parish

17/60102/REF Planning Ref.:  17/00045/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3185357

20 November 2017 Comments Due: 25 December 2017

Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation

Upgrade and renewal of existing services to the moorings, replacement of existing electric
hook-up and water points, mooring bollards, upgrading of black and grey water drainage
system with bespoke drainage system and replacement of sheds.

The Moorings Willows Riverside Park Windsor SL4 5TG

Haulfryn Group Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Jeremy Lambe Lambe Planning And Design Ltd Galeri
Victoria Dock Caernarfon Gwynedd LL55 1SQ

91


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

WINDSOR URBAN

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Appeal Decision Report

27 October 2017 - 24 November 2017

17/60038/ENF Enforcement APP/T0355/C/17/

Ref.: 3169068

Tommy Michael Giles c/o Agent: Mrs Fiona Jones Cameron Jones Planning 3 Elizabeth
Gardens Ascot Berkshire SL5 9BJ

Enforcement Notice

15/50358/ENF Pins Ref.:

Officer Recommendation:

Appeal against the Enforcement Notice: Change of use of agricultural land for the storage of
motor vehicles.

Land To The South of Mill Place Caravan Park Mill Place Caravan Park Datchet Slough

Dismissed Decision Date: 1 November 2017

The appeal is dismissed but the period for compliance is extended to 12 months. The
Inspector found in the Appellant's favour on the issues relating to flood risk; effect on wildlife
and the effect on living conditions. He also agave weight to the economic, environmental (in
part) and some sustainability advantages that a Green Waste storage facility could bring to
the area. However the Inspector notes that the use of the land is inappropriate and harmful in
principle to the Green Belt. He details that it is significantly harmful to the openness of the
Green Belt and that it is also significantly harmful to the character and appearance of this part
of the open countryside. He concludes that the advantages and all of the other favourable
considerations of the proposal do not clearly outweigh the harm, by reason of
inappropriateness and the other harm to the Green Belt and the countryside.

Windsor &
Maidenhead

92

The Royal Borough




Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

93



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 6, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

95



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	06Dec2017WUrban
	06Dec2017WUrban (002).pdf
	17-02236.pdf
	item 2.pdf
	appendices 17-02404.pdf
	item 3.pdf
	47 Kings Road  - Appendix A.pdf
	47 Kings Road - Appendix B.pdf
	47 kings road - Appendix C.pdf
	47 kings road Appendix D.pdf
	47 Kings Road - Appendix E.pdf
	item 4.pdf
	item 5.pdf
	Appendix A.B    17-02911 docx.pdf
	item 6.pdf
	17-03083.pdf


	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)
	7 MINUTES
	8 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT REPORT

